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Financial Highlights

2007
RM’000

Pro-forma
2008
RM’000

2009
RM’000

2010
RM’000

Revenue

73,804

92,550

108,439

109,969

Profit before taxation

11,681

13,709

24,958

21,689

Profit after taxation

10,466

12,381

22,678

20,055

Profit attributable to shareholders

10,466

12,381

22,678

20,055

Total Shareholders’ equity

24,338

39,174

36,351

57,244

Deposit, bank and cash balance

10,267

8,578

20,704

19,595

Gearing (net of cash)

Net Cash

Net Cash

Net Cash

Net Cash

Number of ordinary shares of RM0.20 each
assumed to be in issue (‘000)

180,897(2)

180,897(2)

180,897(2)

200,000(3)

0.13

0.22

0.20

0.29

Financial Year End

Net assets per share (RM)

Notes:
1. The figures for financial years ended 31 August 2007, 2008 and 2009 are prepared based on a proforma consolidated
basis on the assumption that the current structure of the Group has been in existence since the financial year ended
31 August 2007.
2. Based on the issued and paid-up share capital of 180,897,385 ordinary shares of RM0.20 each in the Company after the
Acquisitions, Subdivision and Share Consolidation but prior to the Rights Issue and IPO.
3. Number of ordinary shares of RM0.20 each at 31 August 2010.

Total Shareholders’ equity (RM’000)

Revenue (RM’000)
2007

2007

73,804

2008

2008

92,550

2009

108,439

2009

2010

109,969

2010

Profit attributable to shareholders (RM’000)
2007
2008
2009
2010

2008

12,381
22,678

39,174
36,351
57,244

Net assets per share (RM)
2007

10,466

20,055

24,338

2009
2010

0.13
0.22
0.20
0.29
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Managing Director’s Statement
Dear Valued
Shareholders,
On behalf of the
Board of Directors,
it is my pleasure
to present the
performance of the
Company for the
financial year ended
31 August 2010
(“FYE 2010”).

FINA N C I A L R E S U LTS
Despite the adverse economic situation around the globe, in particular of the
economic uncertainties in Europe arising from the recent economic crisis and
the strengthening of Malaysian Ringgit, the Group still recorded an increase
in revenue for the FYE 2010 of RM110.0 million, as compared to pro-forma
revenue of about RM108.4 million for the financial year ended 31 August 2009
(“FYE 2009”).
However, profit before tax for FYE 2010 declined by 12.9% to RM21.7 million
from RM24.9 million previously. This decline was mainly due to higher selling
and distribution cost incurred in promoting “Eritz” Brand, increased in labour
cost, loss on foreign currency due to weakening in USD and one-off listing
expenses.
Generally, the Group delivered a set of satisfactory financial performance
despite our FYE 2010 have been rather challenging with major economies
still grappling with uncertainties and slowing growth. We ended the year with
earnings per share of 10.37 sen per share and strong balance sheets with net
cash position of RM15.92 million.

RE VI E W O F O P E R AT I O N S
We are one of leading upholstered home furniture integrated designer,
manufacturer and exporter in Malaysia. The products consist of a complete
range of upholstered home furniture, comprising leather and fabric-based
sofas, dining chairs and bed frames.
We primarily undertake Original Design Manufacturing (“ODM”) and Original
Equipment Manufacturing (“OEM”) activities and we have also created our
own brand of lifestyle furniture under “Eritz”. Presently, we have built a diverse
customers base spanning across more than 55 countries, including Europe,
Australia, New Zealand, North and South America, South Africa and the Middle
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Managing Director’s Statement

(cont’d)

East. Our largest export market is Europe which has contributed about 54.5% of
the Group revenues, followed by the Australasia region which has contributed
25.4% of total sales. Our ability to develop a significantly-global clientele speaks
volumes of our products meeting the demands of highly-discerning customers.
For FYE 2010, we have succeeded in diversifying our customers’ base and
expanding the market in North and South America. The revenue contribution
from the North and South America has increased to about 13.0% from 7.8%
registered in FYE 2009.
While mindful of the market challenges in the upholstered home furniture
industry, we are committed to continue growing the Company, in order to
achieve our vision of becoming one of the top ten Asian players in the supply
of conceptualized lifestyle home furniture worldwide, and to be recognized for
our brands, design innovations and quality.
In line with this objective, we will continue keeping our focus to diversify
our customer base worldwide, maintaining stringent cost control, derive
better cost efficiencies and effective cost management across all functions,
continuing our market development activities, continuing our Research and
Development (“R&D”) activities in order to continuously develop new designs
and new products for our end-customers and upholding the management’s
commitment to shareholders’ value creation.

COR POR AT E AND BUSI NESS DE V ELO PM EN T
One of the more notable developments during the year was the listing of
Homeritz Corporation Berhad (“Homeriz”) on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) on 19 February 2010. This is not only a
major milestone in the Group’s track record, but also a feather on our cap just
12 years since we began operations. We are pleased to not only be the first IPO
of the year 2010, but also the first upholstered home furniture player listed on
Bursa Securities.
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Managing Director’s Statement

(cont’d)

We had received positive response for our Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) on Bursa
Securities, with the public tranche oversubscribed by 19%. This favourable
subscription rate showed investors’ appreciation of our fundamentals and their
confidence in the Group’s prospects.
The proceeds from the IPO have been used primarily for the construction of
the new plant in Muar as well as the purchase of machinery and equipment.
The balance has been used for general working capital and listing expenses.
The construction of new plant was partially completed and we have relocated
our dining chair woodworking activities that are previously carried out in our
rented factory to the new plant in December 2010.

STATUS OF UTILISATION OF INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
(“IPO ” ) P RO C E E D S
The Group was successfully listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and raised approximately RM7.871 million in IPO proceeds.
The status of utilisation as at 30 November 2010 is as follows:
Details of the
utilisation of
proceeds

Proposed
Utilisation
(RM’000)

Utilisation
(RM’000)

5,720

3,391

Within 24 months

General working
capital*

151

151

Within 3 to 24 months

Estimated listing
expenses*

2,000

2,000

Within 3 to 24 months

7,871

5,542

Capital expenditure

*

Estimated timeframe
for utilisation from
the date of Listing

Unutilised estimated listing expenses of approximately RM0.3 million were
used for working capital

DI VID EN DS
In tandem with the Group’s commitment to distribute at least 50% of its net
profit for FYE 2010 to allow our shareholders to participate in the profit of the
Group, the Board of Directors is pleased to propose a final single tier tax-exempt
dividend of 10.5% equivalent to 2.1 sen per share amounting to RM4.2 million
for FYE 2010. The proposed final dividend is subject to shareholders’ approval
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
The total dividend paid and proposed by the Company in respect of FYE
2010 was 25.5% of par value (equivalent to 5.1 sen per share) amounting to
approximately RM10.2 million. This represents about 51% of the consolidated
net profit for FYE 2010.
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(cont’d)

OUTLOOK AND PROSPEC TS
The global economic outlook remains uncertain. This was first precipitated
by the sovereign risk issues with the PIIGS countries [Portugal, Ireland,
Italy, Greece and Spain], thereafter the negative impact from China central
government efforts to rein in its unsustainable growth, and lately fears that
a US led global economic recovery is floundering, resulting in a beggar-thyneighbour competitive depreciation of currencies to spur their respective
national economic growth. All these have sharply increased the volatility of all
currencies relative to the US Dollar. As a manufacturer-exporter, the Group’s
business conditions will continue to be heavily influenced by the above macro
factors, forex volatility, freight and raw material costs.
Barring any unforeseen circumstances, we expect that the Group’s prospects
for the financial year ending 2011 to be satisfactory.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS & APPRECI ATI O N
I would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to my fellow Board
members for their support and contributions.
On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank the management and staff for their
hard work and dedication to achieving the Group’s vision, and hope that this
will spur them to achieve even bigger things in the future. We are grateful as
well to our business associates, suppliers, bankers and customers, for believing
in the Group and our products, and encouraging us in our journey.
Last but not least, a word of thanks to our IPO adviser MIMB Investment Bank
Berhad, and due diligence team for their contributions in making the listing of
the Group.
With Best Wishes

CHUA FEN FATT
MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Board Of Directors’ Profile
CHUA FEN FAT T
Managing Director
Aged 40, Malaysian

Chua Fen Fatt was appointed to the
Board on 2 November 2009. He is
one of the founders of HUI in 1997
and since then, he has been the
driving force in the Group and has
been instrumental in the success,
growth and development of the
Group. He has had more than 23
years of hands-on experience in
the furniture industry particularly
in the upholstered home furniture.
Throughout his working career, he
has worked in different levels and
capacities and involved in various
aspects of the industry, from being
a production operator to sample
maker and product designer.
Prior to setting up of HUI, he was
also involved in the sub-contracting
of upholstered home furniture
activities and started his own
manufacturing business, Home Sofa
Industries, in 1996. Over the years, he
has accumulated various technical
know-how and expertise in the art
of manufacturing and designing
upholstered home furniture.
As the Managing Director, he
provides the Group with its corporate
vision and business strategies and is
primarily responsible for the overall
business, strategic planning, design
and development, and the entire
operations of the Group.
Currently, he does not hold any
directorship in any other public
companies.

T E E HW EE I N G

M O HD K HA S A N
B I N A HMA D

Executive Director
Aged 39, Malaysian

Tee Hwee Ing was appointed to the
Board on 2 November 2009. She
is the co-founder of HUI together
with Chua Fen Fatt in 1997. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked with
UOB Card Centre (Singapore) and
Avenue Securities Sdn Bhd in 1990
and 1992 respectively. She has over
13 years of working experience in
the upholstered home furniture
industry. As the Executive Director,
she is primarily responsible for the
overall corporate and administrative
functions of the Group.
Currently, she does not hold any
directorship in any other public
companies.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Aged 49, Malaysian
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
was appointed to the Board on
2 November 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees
of the Company. Mohd Khasan
obtained a diploma in Accountancy
and later graduated with a degree
in Accountancy from Universiti
Teknologi Mara. He is a member
of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (MIA). He served Bank
Negara Malaysia for a period of
about 7 years from 1986, the last
2 years of which he was seconded to
the Capital Issues Committee (CIC)
as its Principal Assistant Secretary.
Subsequently, he joined the Securities
Commission in 1993 for a period of
about 5 years and his last capacity
was an Assistant Manager in its Issues
and Investment Division. During the
tenure of his above appointments,
he was involved in reviewing various
corporate exercises, ranging from
initial public offerings, mergers and
acquisitions, reverse take-overs,
issuance of bonds and other capital
raising exercises.
He left the Securities Commission
and joined the private sector in 1997.
Currently, he sits on the Boards of
Ta Win Holdings Berhad, Crest
Builder Holdings Berhad, Wellcall
Holdings Berhad, Farm’s Best Berhad
and Ralco Corporation Berhad as
Independent Non-Executive Director.
He also sits on the Board of several
other private limited companies.

Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
Annual Report 2010

9

Board Of Directors’ Profile

(cont’d)

SHAM SUDI N @ S AMAD BIN
K ASSIM

Notes to Board of Directors’
Profile:

Independent Non-Executive Director
Aged 64, Malaysian

Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
was appointed to the Board on
2 November 2009. He is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the
Audit and Nomination Committees
of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
of Economics from Universiti
Malaya and a Master in Public and
International Affairs (MPIA) from
the University of Pittsburgh. He
started his career in the Malaysian
government service as an Assistant
Secretary in the Ministry of
Works in 1970. He was subsequently
posted to various ministries and
agencies in the civil service. In 1985,
he was appointed as Senior Assistant
Secretary of Industry Division in the
Ministry of International Trade and
Industry (MITI). He was Malaysia’s
Trade Commissioner to Vienna,
Austria from 1989 to 1996. From
1996 to 1999, he was the Director
of Industries Division in MITI. In
early 2000, he was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of Small and
Medium Industries Development
Corporation (SMIDEC) and served
until his retirement from the public
service.

TAY P UAY C HUA N

Independent Non-Executive Director
Aged 46, Malaysian
Tay Puay Chuan was appointed to
the Board on 2 November 2009. He is
also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of
the Audit and Remuneration
Committees of the Company. He
started his career with the Polis Di
Raja Malaysia, Bukit Aman in 1987
and later left the police force as a
Police Inspector in 1992. He joined
Fajar Sawmill Sdn Bhd as a Factory
Manager from 1992 to 1997. In
1997, he obtained a Bachelor of Law
(Honours) degree from University of
London, United Kingdom. He was
called to the Bar and admitted as
an advocate and solicitor in 1998.
He was the partner in Fazilah, Ong
Chee Seong & Associates from 1998
to 2003 until he set up his own legal
practice, Tay Puay Chuan & Co in
Muar, Johor in 2003.
Currently, he sits on the Boards
of Sern Kou Resources Berhad,
Matang Holdings Berhad and Guan
Chong Berhad as Independent
Non-Executive Director.

Currently, he sits on the Boards of
Perwaja Holdings Berhad, Century
Logistics Holdings Berhad, Supermax
Corporation
Berhad,
Kinsteel
Berhad, Ingress Corporation Berhad
(Chairman), Multi-Code Electronics
Industries
(M)
Berhad,
BHS
Industries Berhad as Independent
Non-Executive Director. He also sits
on the Boards of several other private
limited companies in Malaysia.
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1. Tee Hwee Ing is the spouse
of Chua Fen Fatt. Save as
disclosed, none of the
directors has any family
relationship with any director
of the Company.
2. Save for Tee Hwee Ing and
Tay Puay Chuan, who have
interest in recurrent related
party transactions as disclosed
in item E under additional
compliance information as set
out in page 19 of this Annual
Report, none of the directors
has any conflict of interest
with the Company.
3. None of the directors has
been convicted for any
offences within the past ten
(10) years other than for traffic
offences, if any.
4. Please refer to the analysis of
shareholdings of this Annual
Report for the details of the
directors’ shareholdings in the
Company.
5. Details of number of Board
meetings
attended
by
directors during the financial
year are set out in page 12 of
this Annual Report.

Statement On Corporate Social
Responsibility
Our Group has recognised and acknowledged the importance of a corporate culture that emphasizes good corporate
social responsibility (“CSR”) and corporate citizenship. While delivering sustainable and growing stakeholders value
through the core business, our Group also contributes and provides for the betterment of the employee welfare, market
place and community.

COMMUNITY
During the financial year, our Group made donation contribution to the below beneficial parties as follow:
-

Muar Lion Renal Centre
Muar Chong Hwa Associated Chinese Schools
Persatuan Wasasan Sukan Muar
Jawatan Kuasa Pesta Tanglong Daerah Muar

ENVIROMENT
Our Group promotes environmentally-conscious work practices in order to reduce environmental impact, enhance
energy efficiency and recycling whenever possible. Generally, the upholstered furniture manufacturing industry does
not have any major environmental issues or concerns because there are no emissions of noxious gases or production
of toxic fluids or industrial wastes. Our manufacturing wastes such as saw dust and leather cuttings are relatively minor,
and we easily eliminate such waste in a hygienic and orderly manner, in accordance with guidelines and regulations as
stipulated by the Department of Environment (“DOE”).

MARKET PLACE
Our Group recognises that our ability to produce consistently high quality products is critical to the success of our
business. As such, we place extensive and substantial emphasis on the ultimate quality of our products and maintain
stringent quality control throughout our manufacturing processes. This enables us to produce high quality products to
satisfy the demands and expectations of highly-demanding international customers. Being a manufacturer of export
goods, we are required to adhere to the product quality requirements of countries in which we export to. These include,
but are not limited to fire safety, fumigation and dye test requirements. To ensure that we keep ourselves updated with
knowledge of the latest product quality requirements in such countries, we are a member of both the Malaysian External
Trade Development Corporation (“MATRADE”), as well as the Malaysian Furniture Industry Council (“MFIC”) whereby any
updates or information on such requirements would be disseminated to members via weekly and quarterly bulletins
respectively. In addition, we also work closely with our customers to ensure that our products are in proper compliance
with prevailing local requirements or quality standards.

WORKPLACE
Our Group believes that human capital development is very important to ensure that we have the right and relevant skill
set and knowledge in ensuring business sustainability and growth. As such, we have conducted trainings with emphasis
on quality for the staff to improve further their quality of work and workplace. Health and Safety at the workplace is also
another area of importance to us.
Our Group has set up a Work Safety Committee to develop policies and maintain a safe and healthy workplace for all
its employees, contractors and visitors. Conducting fire drill trainings, meetings, periodic inspections on fire fighting
equipment and prevention programs are carried out to continuously alert the employees on the importance of the safety
and hygiene conditions of the workplace.
Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
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Statement On Corporate Governance
The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance in ensuring that the interest of the Company,
shareholders and other stakeholders are protected. The Board is committed to the maintenance of high standards of
corporate governance by supporting and implementing the prescriptions of the principles and best practices set out in
Parts 1 and 2 respectively of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (the “Code”).
The Board is pleased to provide the following statement, which outlines the main corporate governance practices that
were in place throughout the financial year unless otherwise stated.

A.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
a.

The Board
The Board currently consists of five (5) members comprising two (2) Executive Directors and three (3)
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Hence, the Board’s composition meets the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Listing Requirement”). The composition of the Board
provides an effective blend of entrepreneurship, business and professional expertise in general management,
finance, corporate affairs, legal and technical areas of the industries in which the Group is involved in. A key
strength of this structure has been the speed of decision making.
The Board has overall responsibility for corporate governance, strategic direction, formulation of policies and
overseeing the conduct of investments and businesses of the Group. The various policies, procedures and
guidelines implemented by the Group clearly set out the roles, responsibilities and authorities of staff of the
Group, and ensure that the direction and control of the Group rests firmly with the Board.
Although all the Directors have equal responsibility to the Group, the presence of the Independent NonExecutive Directors on the Board fulfills a pivotal role in ensuring corporate accountability, as they provide
unbiased and independent views, advices, opinions and judgments to take into account of the interests,
not only of the Group but also the interest of the shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers and the
many communities in which the Group conducts business. The Independent Non-Executive Directors are
actively involved in the various Board Committees. They provide broader views, independent assessments
and opinions on management proposals sponsored by the Executive Directors.
Due to the relatively small size of the Group, the current size and composition of the Board is optimum
and well balanced, and caters effectively to the scope of the Group’s operations. The Board does not intend
to appoint an Independent Chairman to the Board. It has appointed Mr. Tay Puay Chuan as the Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director to facilitate communications with any stakeholders not dealt with by
the Managing Director or the Executive Director.
All the Directors have given their undertaking to comply with the Listing Requirements and the Independent
Directors have confirmed their independence in writing.

b.

Board Meetings
The Board meets on a quarterly basis with additional meetings held whenever necessary. During the financial
year, two (2) Board meetings were convened on 29 April 2010 and 26 July 2010 since its official listing on
Bursa Securities on 19 February 2010.The details of attendance are as follows:

12

Directors

Directorship

Chua Fen Fatt
Tee Hwee Ing
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
Tay Puay Chuan

Managing Director
Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Attendance
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

Statement On Corporate Governance
(cont’d)
c.

Board Committees
The Board has established the following Committees to assists the Board in discharging its duties and
responsibilities effectively:
i)
ii)
iii)

Audit Committee
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee

The functions and terms of reference of the Committees, as well as the authority delegated by the Board
to these Committees, have been clearly defined and approved by the Board. These Committees have the
authority to examine particular issues within their terms of reference in greater details and subsequently
recommend and report to the Board. However, the ultimate responsibility for the final decision on all matters
still lies with the Board as a whole.
i)

Audit Committee
The report of the Audit Committee is set out in the Audit Committee Report in of this Annual Report.

ii)

Nomination Committee
Our Nomination Committee was established on 02 November 2009 and the members of the Nomination
Committee consist of the following members:
Director

Designation

Directorship

Tay Puay Chuan
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim

Chairman
Member
Member

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

The Nomination Committee operates under its terms of reference and had one (1) meeting convened
on 26 July 2010 since its official listing on Bursa Securities on 19 February 2010.
The main functions of the Nomination Committee include the following:-

iii)

•

identifying and recommending to the Board, candidates for directorships of the Company and
Directors as members of the relevant Board Committees; and

•

evaluating the effectiveness of the Board and the relevant Board Committees.

Remuneration Committee
Our Remuneration Committee was established on 02 November 2009 and the members of the
Nomination Committee consist of the following members:
Director

Designation

Directorship

Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Tay Puay Chuan

Chairman
Member
Member

Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-ExecutiveDirector
Independent Non-Executive Director

Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
Annual Report 2010

13

Statement On Corporate Governance
(cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee operates under its terms of reference. During the financial year,
one (1) meeting was convened on 26 July 2010 since its official listing on Bursa Securities on 19 February
2010.
The main functions of the Remuneration Committee include the following:•

to consider and recommend to the Board the remuneration framework for Executive Directors;
and

•

to provide the remuneration packages needed to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors
of the quality required to manage the business of the Group successfully.

The remuneration and entitlements of the Non-Executive Directors shall be a matter to be decided
by the Board as a whole with the Director concerned abstained from deliberation and voting on his
individual remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee adopts the principles recommended by the Code in determining the
Directors’ remuneration whereby the Executive Directors’ remuneration is designed to link rewards
to the Group’s performance whilst the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is determined in
accordance with their experience and the level of responsibilities. The Directors’ fees are subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meetings.
d.

Supply of Information
The Board is provided with an agenda and comprehensive board papers on a timely basis prior to board
meetings. This is to ensure the Directors to discharge their duties and responsibilities competently and in a
well-informed manner. The Company Secretary records all the deliberations including pertinent issues, the
substance of inquiries and responses, Board members’ suggestions and the decision made in the Minutes of
the Board meetings. The Minutes of every Board meeting are also circulated to the Directors for their perusal
prior to confirmation of the Minutes at the following Board meeting.
Furthermore, in exercising their duties, the Directors have full, unrestricted and timely access to all information
pertaining to the Group’s business affairs. All members of the Board have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretaries and are entitled to obtain professional opinions or advice from external consultants
when need arises at the expense of the Group. The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures as well as statutory and regulatory requirements relating to
the duties and responsibilities of the Directors are complied with.

e.

Appointments and Re-elections to the Board
The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations for any appointments to the Board.
In making these recommendations, the Nomination Committee considers the required mix of skills and
experience which the Directors should bring to the Board.
The Committee will then recommend the candidates to be approved and appointed by the Board. The
Company Secretary will ensure that all appointments are properly made, that all necessary information is
obtained, as well as legal and regulatory obligation are met. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, all Directors who are appointed by the Board are subject to election by shareholders at the first
opportunity after their appointment.
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The Company’s Articles of Association also provide that at least one third (1/3) of the remaining Directors
be subject to re-election by rotation at each Annual General Meeting provided always that all Directors shall
retire from office at least once every three years but shall be eligible for re-election.
f.

Directors Training and Education
All Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (“MAP”). The Directors are encouraged
to attend other relevant trainings to further enhance their skills and knowledge, as well as to keep abreast
with the changing regulatory and corporate governance developments.
During the financial year, all the Directors have attended relevant training programmes to enhance their
knowledge to effectively discharge their duties and obligations. The training programmes attended are as
follows:
Directors

Training Programmes Attended

Chua Fen Fatt

1. Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP)
2. Beyond Excellence All Rounded Success Seminar

Tee Hwee Ing

1. Mandatory Accreditation Programme (MAP)
2. Beyond Excellence All Rounded Success Seminar
3. Production Planning Training

Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
1.
		
2.
		

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards-Recent developments
and updates
Accounting for construction contracts, property development
activities and borrowing costs

Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
1.
		
2.
		
3.

Forum on FRS’ 139 Financial Instruments : Recognition &
Measurement
Corporate Governance : The Role of the Audit Committee /
Corporate Governance and the Media
Governance Expectations of International Fund Managers

Tay Puay Chuan

1. Corporate Governance Guide-Towards Boardroom
2. Beyond Excellence All Rounded Success Seminar

In addition, the Company Secretary and the External Auditors have also regularly updated the Directors on
the latest relevant regulatory requirements and accounting standards to enable them to keep abreast with
such developments and amendments.
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B.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of Directors’ remuneration payable to the Directors of the Company for the financial year ended 31 August
2010 by category and successive bands of RM50,000 are as follows:
Executive Directors
(RM)

Non-Executive Directors
(RM)

Total
(RM)

6,000
180,000
171,000
720,000
1,240
28,500

8,500
70,000
-

14,500
180,000
171,000
70,000
720,000
1,240
28,500

1,106,740

78,500

1,185,240

Number of Directors
Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors

Total

Allowances
Bonuses
EPF
Fee
Salaries
SOCSO
Benefits-in-kind

RM 1 - RM 50,000
RM 500,001 - RM 550,000

C.

2

3
-

3
2

SHAREHOLDERS
a.

Relationship with Shareholders and Investor
The Company acknowledges the need for investors to be informed of all material business and corporate
developments affecting the Group. The channels of communication to shareholders for information of the
Group are as follow:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

b.

announcement of quarterly results on quarterly basis;
the issue of the Company’s Annual Reports;
announcements to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad;
ad-hoc press statements and interviews, where appropriate;
Company website at www.homeritzcorp.com; and
Investor briefings with financial analysts, institutional shareholders and fund managers.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting serves as an important means for shareholders communication. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and Annual Reports are sent to shareholders twenty one days prior to the meeting.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend and participate at the Annual General Meeting by raising questions
on the resolutions being proposed or on the Group’s business operations in general.
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D.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
a.

Financial Reporting
The Board aims to present a balanced, insightful and timely assessment of the Group’s financial position and
prospects by ensuring quality financial reporting through the annual audited financial statements and quarterly
financial results to its stakeholders, in particular, shareholders, investors and the regulatory authorities. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the Group’s financial reporting processes and the accuracy,
consistency and the application of accounting standards and policies; and for reasonableness and prudence
in making estimates, statements and explanation prior to submission to the Board for its approval.

b.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement in respect of the Audited Financial Statements
The Board is responsible to ensure that the financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and applicable approved Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the results of their operations and
cash flows for the year ended on that date. A Statement by the Directors of their responsibilities in preparing
the financial statements is set out separately on page 26 of this Annual Report.

c.

Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal controls
that provides reasonable assessment of effective and efficient operations, internal financial controls and
compliance with laws and regulations as well as with internal procedures and guidelines. The effectiveness
of the systems of internal controls of the Group is reviewed periodically by the Audit Committee. Further
details of the Group’s system of internal controls are set out in the Statement on Internal Control section of
this Annual Report.

d.

Relationship with Auditors
The Board through the Audit Committee, maintains a formal and transparent relationship with the Group’s
External Auditors in seeking valuable professional advice and in ensuring compliance with the applicable
approved Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board in Malaysia.
Further details of the roles of the Audit Committee in relation to the External Auditors are described in the
Audit Committee Report of this Annual Report.
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(cont’d)
E.

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE INFORMATION
a.

Utilisation of Proceeds from Issuance of Initial Public Offering (“IPO”)
The Group was successfully listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and raised
approximately RM7.871 million in IPO proceeds. The status of utilisation as at 30 November 2010 is as
follows:
Details of the utilisation of
proceeds

Proposed		
Utilisation
Utilisation
(RM’000)
(RM’000)

Capital expenditure
General working capital*
Estimated listing expenses*

5,720
151
2,000

3,391
151
2,000

7,871

5,542

Estimated timeframe for
utilisation from the date of
Listing
Within 24 months
Within 3 to 24 months
Within 3 to 24 months

* Unutilised estimated listing expenses of approximately RM0.3 million were used for working capital
b.

Share Buy-back
The Company did not enter into any share buy-back transactions during the financial year.

c.

Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities
The Company did not issue any options, warrants or convertible securities during the financial year.

d.

American Depository Receipt (ADR) or Global Depository Receipt (GDR) Programme
The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme during the financial year.

e.

Sanctions and / or Penalties Imposed
There were no public sanctions and / or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or
Management by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.

f.

Non-Audit Fees
The amount of non-audit fees paid to the External Auditors by the Group for the financial year amounted to
RM34,000-00.

g.	Variations in Results
There were no variations of 10% or more between the audited results and unaudited results of the Group for
the financial year. The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue any profit estimates, forecast or projection
for the financial year.
h.

Profit Guarantee
No profit guarantee was provided by the Company or its subsidiaries during the financial year.
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i.

Material Contracts
Supplemental Agreement dated 15 September 2009 entered into between Chua Fen Fatt, Tee Hwee Ing,
Pua Yu Heng and Chua Fen Lee (or “Offerors”) as the vendors and the Company as the purchaser to revise the
purchase consideration to RM36,179,475 to be satisfied by the issuance of 72,358,950 new ordinary shares of
RM0.50 each in the Company at an issue price of RM0.50 per share.

j.

Revaluation Policy on Landed Properties
The Group adopted a policy of revaluing landed properties every five years or at shorter intervals whenever
the fair value of the revalued assets is expected to differ materially from their carrying amounts. No revaluation
is done for this financial year.

k.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions
Bursa Securities had, on 18 January 2010, granted the Group an extension of time from having to procure
the shareholders’ mandate on the recurrent related party transactions of a revenue and trading in nature
entered into or to be entered into by the Group from 19 February 2010, being the date of official listing
of the Company on Bursa Securities to the date of the forthcoming AGM and to ratify such related party
transactions of a revenue and trading in nature at the forthcoming AGM. This is to enable the Company to
reduce substantial administrative time, inconvenience and expenses in convening such general meeting on
the ad-hoc basis.
In the normal course of business, the Company and the subsidiaries undertake on agreed terms and prices,
transactions with the specified related parties. The aggregate value of the recurrent related party transactions
occurred during the financial year was as follows:
Transaction with companies in which certain directors of
the Company have interest:
Sern Kou Furniture Industries Sdn. Bhd. (*)
- Sale of upholstered dining chairs.
V8 Trading Sdn. Bhd. (**)
- Transportation services.

RM’000
60
1

Note:
* Tay Puay Chuan, an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Sern Kou Resources Berhad, the holding company of Sern Kou Furniture Industries
Sdn Bhd and S. K. Furniture Sdn Bhd.
** One of the Directors of V8 Trading Sdn Bhd is a brother to Tee Hwee Ing, Executive Director of the Company.
Further details of the specified related parties shown above are provided in the Circular to Shareholders
dated 31 January 2011.

F.

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT
The Board considers that it has complied throughout the financial year with the Best Practices as set out in the
Code, unless otherwise stated. This above statement is made in accordance with the resolution passed at the Board
of Directors’ meeting held on 8 December 2010.
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Audit Committee Report
COMPOSITION AND MEMBERS
The Current Audit Committee comprises three (3) members of the Board which are all Independent Non-Executive
Directors.
The members of the Audit Committee, their respective designations and directorship are as follows:•

Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Chairman, Independent Non-Executive Director

•

Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

•

Tay Puay Chuan
Member, Independent Non-Executive Director

TERM OF REFERENCE
Objectives
The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors (“the Board”) in fulfilling their
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices of the Company and each of its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”). In addition, the Audit Committee will:•

oversee and appraise the quality of the audit conducted by the Company’s External Auditors and the Internal
Auditors in order to strengthen the confidence of the public in the Groups’ reported results;

•

maintain, by scheduling regular meetings, open lines of communication amongst the Board, the External Auditors
and the Internal Auditors, to exchange view and information as well as to confirm their respective authority and
responsibilities;

•

review related party transactions entered into by the Company and the Group to ensure that such transactions are
undertaken on the Group’s normal commercial terms and that the internal control procedures with regards to such
transactions are sufficient;

•

provide assistance to the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities relating to the Company’s administrative,
operating and accounting controls; and

•

act upon the Board’s request to investigate and report on any issues or concerns on the management of the
Group.

Composition
The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board from among their number and compose no fewer than three
(3) members. All members of the Audit Committee must be Non-Executive Directors with a majority of them being
Independent Directors.
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At least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:•

must be a Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA); or

•

if he is not a Member of MIA, he must have at least three (3) years’ working experience and:- he must have passed the examinations specified in Part 1 of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967; or
- he must be a Member of one of the Associations of Accountant specified in Part II of the 1st Schedule of the
Accountants Act 1967; or

•

he must have:- a degree/masters/doctorate in accounting or finance and at least three (3) years’ post qualification experience
in accounting or finance; or
- at least 7 years’ experience being a chief financial officer of a corporation or having the function primarily
responsible for the management of the financial affairs of a corporation.

The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from among their number who shall be an Independent
Non-Executive Director. No Alternate Director is appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
In the event that if a member of the Audit Committee vacates office resulting in the total number reduced to below three
(3), the Board shall, within three (3) months of that event, appoints a new member to make up the minimum number of
three (3).
Meetings
The Audit Committee will meet at least once quarterly and such additional meetings as the Chairman shall decide in
order to fulfill its duties. In addition, the Chairman may call a meeting if a request is made by any Committee Member,
the Company’s Managing Director, the External Auditors or the Internal Auditors where applicable.
Senior managements, representatives of the External Auditors and Internal Auditors should normally be invited to attend
Audit Committee Meetings. Other Board Members may attend meeting upon the invitation of the Audit Committee.
However, the Audit Committee should meet with the External Auditors without Executive Board Members present at
least twice a year.
The Chairman may appoint a Secretary responsible for keeping the minutes of meetings of the Committee, and circulating
them to Committee Members and to other members of the Board. A quorum for a meeting shall be two (2) members,
with the majority of the members present shall be independent Directors. The Audit Committee must prepare an Audit
Committee Report at the end of the financial year in the Annual Report of the Company which summaries the Audit
Committee’s activities during the financial year and the related significant findings.
Authority
The Audit Committee is authorised to investigate any activity of the Company within its Terms and Reference and all
employees shall be directed to co-operate with any request made by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall
have unrestricted access to all information pertaining to the Company and have direct communication channels with the
External and Internal Auditors, and to the senior management of the Group. The Audit Committee shall be empowered
to engage persons or experts having special competence as necessary to assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling its
responsibilities.

Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
Annual Report 2010

21

Audit Committee Report

(cont’d)

Duties and Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee shall be as follows:•

to consider and recommend the nomination and appointment of the External Auditors, the audit fees, the questions
of their resignation or dismissal and any other related matters;

•

to oversee all matters pertaining to audit including the review of the audit plan and audit report with the External
Auditors;

•

to review the financial statements of the Group, and to discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final results, and any matters that the External Auditors may wish to discuss (in the absence of the management
where necessary);

•

the Chairman of the Audit Committee to engage on a continuous basis with senior management such as the
Chairman, the Chief Executive Office, the Finance Director, the External Auditors as well as the Internal Auditors in
order to kept informed of matters affecting the Company;

•

in relation to the internal audit function:
- review the adequacy of the scope, function, competency and resources of the internal audit function, and that
it has the necessary authority to carry out its works; and
- review the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit process and where necessary ensure that
appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function.

•

to review any related parties transactions that may arise within the Company or the Group;

•

to review the application of corporate governance principles and the extent of the Group’s compliance with the
best practices set out under the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance;

•

to consider all areas of significant financial risk and arrangement in place to contain those risks to acceptable
levels;

•

to ensure that the Group is in compliance with the regulations of Companies Act, 1965, Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and other legislative and reporting requirements;

•

to identify and direct any special project or investigate and to report on any issues or concerns in regards to the
management of the Group; and

•

such other functions as may be agreed by the Audit Committee and the Board.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES
A total of two (2) Audit Committee meetings were held for the financial year ended 31 August 2010. The details of
attendance of each Audit Committee member are as follows:
Name of Members
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
Tay Puay Chuan
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(cont’d)

The main activities undertaken by the Committee during the financial year included the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

reviewed the unaudited quarterly financial results of the Group prior to making recommendations for the Board’s
approval and subsequent announcements;
reviewed the potential related party transaction and any conflict of interest situation that may arise within the
Company of Group entered into by the Group;
considered and recommended to the Board of Directors the appointment of the External and Internal Auditors and
payments of fees;
reviewed the risk management framework and review of internal control;
reviewed the internal audit planning, internal audit reports, audit findings, audit recommendations made and
management’s responses to these recommendations and actions taken to improve the system of internal control
and procedures;
reviewed with the External Auditors the audit planning memorandum covering the audit objectives and approach,
audit plan, key audit areas and relevant technical pronouncements and accounting standards issued by Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board;
reviewed with the External Auditors the audit review memorandum covering the results of the audit of the audited
financial statements and audit report in particular, accounting issues and significant audit adjustments arising from
the external audit;
reviewed the annual financial statements of the Group prior to submission to the Board for consideration and
approval; and
reviewed of the Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Control Statement for disclosure in this Annual
Report.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for maintaining a sound system of internal controls which provide
reasonable assessment of effective operations, internal financial controls and compliance with laws and regulations as
well as with internal procedures and guidelines.
The Company has engaged an external independent consultant to carry out the internal audit function to assist the
Audit Committee in maintaining a sound system of internal control. The internal audits were undertaken to provide
independent assessment on the accuracy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Group‘s internal control systems.
An overview of the Group’s approach in maintaining a sound system of internal control is set out in the Statement on
Internal Control on pages 24 to 25 of this Annual Report.
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Statement On Internal Control
INTRODUCTION
Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Listing Requirements”) requires the Board to
make a statement in the Company’s Annual Report about the state of its internal control. Set out below is the Board’s
Statement on Internal Control as a Group, made in compliance with the Listing Requirements and the Statement on
Internal Control: Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining sound internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and
the Group’s asset; identifying principal risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks; and reviewing the adequacy and integrity of internal control system and management information systems and
systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines.
The system of internal control covers inter alia, governance, risk management, financial organisation, operational and
compliance control. However, in view of the limitations that are inherent in any systems of internal control, such systems
are designed to mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

THE GROUP’S SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Enterprise Risk Management
The Board recognizes that identification and prioritization of the Group’s business risks is a critical element of a broader
risk management program. The Board together with the outsourced independent consultant has performed the
Enterprise-Wide Risk Assessment for evaluating the risk and control culture of the Group, identifying, assessing and
ranking related areas of risk, and providing proposed risk-based internal audit plan for major operational activities of the
Group. The outcome of this assessment is reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Included in the reports are
recommended corrective measures on risk identified, if any, for implementation by the Management.
As an ongoing process, significant business risks faced by the Group are identified and evaluated and consideration is
given on the potential impact of achieving the business objectives. This includes examining principal business risks in
critical areas, assessing the likelihood of material exposures and identifying the measures taken to mitigate, avoid or
eliminate these risks.
Internal Audit Function
The Board recognizes that effective monitoring on a continuous basis is a vital component of a sound internal control
system. The Group has an out-sourcing arrangement with an independent internal audit service provider in relation
to its internal audit function to examine and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems of the business units. The internal audit adopts a risk-based approach and prepares its audit strategy and plan
based on the risk profiles of individual business units of the Group. These plans are updated and approved by the Audit
Committee. The internal audit appraises and contributes towards improving the Group’s risk management and control
systems, and reports to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
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Other Features of the Group‘s System of Internal Control
The other features of the Group’s systems of internal control include the following:
•
Written communication of the Company values, the expected code of conduct, policies and procedures;
•
Clearly defined objectives and term of reference of the board of directors and its committees;
•
Clear organisation structure with delineated reporting lines;
•
The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly financial results, annual report, audited financial statements, Group’s
risk profile and internal control issues identified by the External Auditors, Internal Auditors and the management.
The Audit Committee also monitors the implementation of the recommendations proposed by the External
Auditors and Internal Auditors;
•
A reporting system where information on financial performance and key business indicators are provided to the
Audit Committee and the Board on a quarterly basis for review;
•
Periodic management meetings are held to provide a forum where management undertakes overall responsibility
for periodic reviews to identify, discuss and resolve key operational issues, to further improve its effectiveness;
•
Appointment of staff is based on the required level of qualification, experience and competency to fulfill their
responsibilities. Training and development is provided for selected staff to further enhance their skills and
capabilities. In addition, a formal employee appraisal to evaluate and measure employee’s performance and their
competency is performed at least once a year.

CONCLUSION
The Board is pleased to report that there were no significant internal control deficiencies or weaknesses that resulted in
material losses or contingencies that would require disclosure in the Group’s Annual Report for the financial year under
review.
The External Auditors have reviewed this Statement on Internal Control pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the Listing
Requirements. The External Auditors’ review was performed in accordance with Recommended Practice Guide 5
(“RPG 5”) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Based on their review, the External Auditors have reported to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that this Statement is inconsistent with
their understanding of the process the Board has adopted in the review of the adequacy and integrity of the internal
control of the Group. RPG 5 does not require the External Auditors to, and they did not, consider whether this Statement
covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and control procedures.
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Statement On Directors’ Responsibilities
In Relation To The Audited Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements for each financial year. They are responsible
for ensuring that these financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company and the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended. The financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with applicable approved accounting standards and
comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965. It is the duty of the Directors to review the appropriateness of
the basis before adopting the financial statements and present them before the Annual General Meeting together with
their Report and the Auditors’ Report thereon.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting and other records are kept to sufficiently explain the
transactions recorded. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to exercise judgment to make
certain estimates that are reasonable, prudent and relevant to be incorporated in the financial statements. The Directors
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.
This above statement is made in accordance with the resolution passed at the Board of Directors’ meeting held on
8 December 2010.
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Directors’ Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and
of the Company for the financial year ended 31 August 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
			
			
Profit for the financial year

Group
RM

Company
RM

20,054,894

6,316,210

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year
have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

DIVIDENDS
Dividends paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial year were as follows :
(a)

A first interim tax-exempt dividend of 6% equivalent to 1.2 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM 2,400,000
in respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2010 was declared by the Company on 17 February 2010 and
subsequently paid on 18 March 2010. The payment was made to the shareholders whose names appeared in the
Company’s Record of Depositors on 8 March 2010.

(b)

A second interim single tier tax-exempt dividend of 9% equivalent to 1.8 sen per ordinary share amounting to
RM 3,600,000 in respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2010 was declared by the Company on 29 April 2010
and subsequently paid on 8 June 2010. The payment was made to the shareholders whose names appeared in the
Company’s Record of Depositors on 14 May 2010.

Pending the declaration of dividend by a subsidiary totaling RM 4,200,000, the Board of Directors proposes a final single
tier tax-exempt dividend of 10.5% equivalent to 2.1 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM 4,200,000 in respect of the
financial year ended 31 August 2010. This dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in the financial statements. Such dividend, if approved by
the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained profits for the financial year ending
31 August 2011.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year save as disclosed in the
financial statements.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
During the financial year, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from RM 100,000 to RM 100,000,000
by the creation of 199,800,000 new ordinary shares of RM 0.50 each. Meanwhile, the issued and paid-up share capital was
increased from RM 2 to RM 40,000,000 by the issuance of new ordinary shares as follows :
Date Of Allotment
Number Of Shares
		

Par Value
RM

Consideration

(a) 15 September 2009

72,358,950

0.50

Shares issued at RM 0.50 per share in consideration
for the acquisition of the entire issued and paidup share capital of Home Upholstery Industries
Sdn. Bhd..

(b) 26 November 2009

361,794,770

0.10

Share split at par value of every one (1) existing
ordinary share of RM 0.50 each into five (5)
ordinary shares of RM 0.10 each.

(c) 26 November 2009

180,897,385

0.20

Consolidation of par value of every two (2)
existing ordinary shares of RM 0.10 each into one
(1) ordinary share of RM 0.20 each.

(d) 30 November 2009

10,102,615

0.20

Rights issue at RM 0.20 per share.

(e) 12 February 2010

9,000,000

0.20

Public Issue at an issue price of RM 0.65 per
share.

Upon completion of the above subdivision and consolidation on 26 November 2009, the authorised share capital of the
Company is RM 100,000,000 comprising 500,000,000 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each.
The resultant premium arising from the shares issued in (e) of RM 4,050,000 was credited to the share premium
account.
The new ordinary shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing ordinary shares of the Company.
There were no debentures issued during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
No options have been granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares of the Company during
the financial year.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows :
Chua Fen Fatt
Tee Hwee Ing (f)
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
Tay Puay Chuan
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the financial
year in shares of the Company and its related corporations are as follows :
Number Of Ordinary Shares
				
Share split and
						 consolidation into
				
RM0.50 each at
RM0.20 each at		
				
01.09.2009
Bought 26 November 2009
Bought
Chua Fen Fatt
- Direct
- Indirect *
Tee Hwee Ing (f)
- Direct
- Indirect *
Mohd Khasan
Bin Ahmad
Shamsudin @ Samad
Bin Kassim
Tay Puay Chuan

Sold

RM0.20 each at
31.08.2010

- 33,849,519
- 33,849,519

84,623,798
84,623,797

4,726,002
4,726,003

(17,510,000)
(17,510,000)

71,839,800
71,839,800

- 33,849,519
- 33,849,519

84,623,797
84,623,798

4,726,003
4,726,002

(17,510,000)
(17,510,000)

71,839,800
71,839,800

-

-

-

20,000

-

20,000

-

-

-

20,000
20,000

-

20,000
20,000

* Deemed interest by virtue of his/her spouse’s interest in the Company.
By virtue of their interests in the shares of the Company, Mr. Chua Fen Fatt and Madam Tee Hwee Ing are also deemed to
have an interest in the shares of all the subsidiaries to the extent that the Company has an interest.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the directors has received or become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors as
disclosed in Note 16 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation
with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial
financial interest save as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.
During and at the end of the financial year, no arrangements subsisted to which the Company was a party, whereby the
directors of the Company might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION
(a)

Before the balance sheets and the income statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the
directors took reasonable steps :
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making
of allowance for doubtful debts and have satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts to be
written off and that no allowance for doubtful debts had been made; and
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(cont’d)

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)
(ii)

(b)

(c)

(d)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting records
in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to
realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances :
(i)

which would necessitate the writing off of bad debts or the setting up of allowance for doubtful debts in
respect of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company; or

(ii)

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the
Company misleading; or

(iii)

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the
Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or

(iv)

not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would
render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)

any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year.

In the opinion of the directors:
(i)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of
the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due; and

(ii)

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of
the financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations
of the Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.

EVENT SIGNIFICANT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE
Detail of subsequent event is disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements.
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AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs. SC Lim, Ng & Co., have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors :

CHUA FEN FATT
Director

TEE HWEE ING (f)
Director
Muar, Johor Darul Takzim
Date : 8 December 2010
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Statement By Directors

Pursuant To Section 169(15) Of The Companies Act, 1965
We, the undersigned, being two of the directors of Homeritz Corporation Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of
the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 35 to 71 are drawn up in accordance with applicable Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Company at 31 August 2010 and of the results and cash flows of the Group and of the Company for
the financial year ended on that date.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors :

CHUA FEN FATT
Director

TEE HWEE ING (f)
Director
Muar, Johor Darul Takzim
Date : 8 December 2010

Statutory Declaration

Pursuant To Section 169(16) Of The Companies Act, 1965
I, CHUA FEN FATT, the director primarily responsible for the financial management of Homeritz Corporation Berhad, do
solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 35 to 71 are to the best of my knowledge
and belief, correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared
by the abovenamed CHUA FEN FATT
at Muar in the state of Johor Darul Takzim
on 8 December 2010

}
}
}
}

CHUA FEN FATT
Before me :
HASSAN BIN ABDUL SAMAD (No. J111)
PPN, PIS., PBM
Commissioner for Oaths
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To The Members Of HOMERITZ CORPORATION BERHAD
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the financial statements of Homeritz Corporation Berhad, which comprise the balance sheets at
31 August 2010 of the Group and of the Company, and the income statements, statements of changes in equity and
cash flow statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 35 to 71.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with applicable Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with applicable Financial Reporting
Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of the Company at 31 August 2010 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year
then ended.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following :
(a)

In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company
and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(b)

We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s
financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us
for those purposes.
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(cont’d)
To The Members Of HOMERITZ CORPORATION BERHAD

(c)

Our audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse
comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of
this report.

SC LIM, NG & CO.
No. AF 0681
Chartered Accountants

NG KIM KIAT
No. 2074/10/12 (J)
Chartered Accountant
Muar, Johor Darul Takzim
Date : 8 December 2010
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Balance Sheets
At 31 August 2010

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

4
5
6

27,131,989
1,167,693
-

26,913,028
1,181,539
-

37,191,799

-

									

28,299,682

28,094,567

37,191,799

-

Current Assets
Inventories 				
Trade and other receivables
Deposits, bank and cash balances

7
8
9

17,512,528
7,438,261
19,594,545

11,830,295
8,032,390
20,704,565

5,963,633
253,145

2

									

44,545,334

40,567,250

6,216,778

2

TOTAL ASSETS 			

72,845,016

68,661,817

43,408,577

2

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders
of the Company
Share capital 			
Reserves 				

40,000,000
17,243,833

36,179,477
172,035

40,000,000
3,321,177

2
(11,937)

57,243,833

36,351,512

43,321,177

(11,935)

3,352,483
2,087,579

5,396,404
2,059,579

-

-

									

5,440,062

7,455,983

-

-

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
14
Bank borrowings		
12
Dividend payable			
Tax payable 				

9,609,079
324,684
227,358

9,540,518
2,365,243
12,000,000
948,561

87,400
-

11,937
-

								

10,161,121

24,854,322

87,400

11,937

TOTAL LIABILITIES 		

15,601,183

32,310,305

87,400

11,937

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		

72,845,016

68,661,817

43,408,577

2

								
								
Note
								
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment in subsidiaries

10
11

TOTAL EQUITY				
Non-Current Liabilities
Bank borrowings 		
Deferred tax liabilities

12
13

Company
Audited

2009
RM

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Income Statements

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

109,969,268

108,439,444

7,100,000

-

OTHER INCOME 			

140,282

145,706

-

-

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED
GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS		

462,840

680,756

-

-

RAW MATERIALS USED		

(60,295,011)

(62,622,411)

-

-

GOODS PURCHASED FOR RESALE		

-

(190,255)

-

-

DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION EXPENSES		

(1,830,853)

(1,670,218)

-

-

17

(11,058,580)

(9,387,066)

(6,000)

-

OTHER EXPENSES			

(15,642,009)

(10,253,246)

(767,656)

(6,097)

RESULTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

21,745,937

25,142,710

6,326,344

(6,097)

INTEREST INCOME			

172,997

32,604

19,866

-

FINANCE COSTS			

(230,445)

(217,042)

-

-

21,688,489

24,958,272

6,346,210

(6,097)

(1,633,595)

(2,280,397)

(30,000)

-

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

20,054,894

22,677,875

6,316,210

(6,097)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 		

20,054,894

22,677,875

6,316,210

(6,097)

10.37

12.54

								
								
Note
								
REVENUE					

15

STAFF COSTS 			

18

19

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
TAX EXPENSE 			

20

BASIC EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY (sen)
21
					

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Audited

2009
RM

Statements Of Changes In Equity
For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010
Group

Attributable To Equity Holders Of The Company
										
Non										 Distributable
Distributable
									
Share
Share
Retained
Total
								
Note
Capital
Premium
Profits
Equity
									
RM
RM
RM
RM
At 1 September 2008 (Proforma)

28

36,179,477 *

-

2,994,160

39,173,637

Profit for the financial year		

-

-

22,677,875

22,677,875

Dividends					

-

-

(25,500,000)

(25,500,000)

At 31 August 2009 (Proforma)		

36,179,477

-

172,035

36,351,512

Issuance of shares pursuant
to rights issue 			

2,020,523

-

-

2,020,523

Issuance of shares pursuant
to public issue			

1,800,000

4,050,000

-

5,850,000

Listing expenses				

-

(1,033,096)

-

(1,033,096)

Profit for the financial year		

-

-

20,054,894

20,054,894

Dividends					

22

-

-

(6,000,000)

(6,000,000)

At 31 August 2010			

40,000,000

3,016,904

14,226,929

57,243,833

22

					
*
The share capital at 1 September 2008 of the Group is presented as if the share capital arising from the acquisition
of subsidiaries amounting to RM 36,179,475 had been combined at the previous balance sheet date under the
merger method of accounting.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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Statements Of Changes In Equity

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010
Company

Attributable To Equity Holders Of The Company
										
Non										 Distributable
Distributable
											 (Accumulated
											
Losses)/
									
Share
Share
Retained
Total
								
Note
Capital
Premium
Profits
Equity
									
RM
RM
RM
RM
At 1 September 2008		

2

-

(5,840)

(5,838)

(Loss) for the financial year		

-

-

(6,097)

(6,097)

At 31 August 2009			

2

-

(11,937)

(11,935)

Issue of shares pursuant to acquisition
of subsidiaries 			

36,179,475

-

-

36,179,475

Issuance of shares pursuant to rights issue

2,020,523

-

-

2,020,523

Issuance of shares pursuant to public issue

1,800,000

4,050,000

-

5,850,000

Listing expenses				

-

(1,033,096)

-

(1,033,096)

Profit for the financial year		

-

-

6,316,210

6,316,210

Dividends					

-

-

(6,000,000)

(6,000,000)

40,000,000

3,016,904

304,273

43,321,177

22

At 31 August 2010			
				

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

21,688,489

24,958,272

6,346,210

(6,097)

13,846
1,817,007
-

13,846
1,656,372
-

(7,100,000)

-

(13,750)
639,797

30,869
-

639,797

-

14,297
107,840
230,445
(172,997)

6,900
217,042
(32,604)

(19,866)

-

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES		

24,324,974

26,850,697

(133,859)

(6,097)

Changes In Working Capital
Inventories 					
Trade and other receivables		
Trade and other payables		

(5,682,233)
577,601
(50,706)

542,731
(939,878)
(1,044,778)

(5,963,633)
75,463

6,097

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATIONS				
Dividends received 		
Interest received 			
Interest paid					
Tax paid							
Tax recoverable				

19,169,636
172,997
(230,445)
(2,326,798)
-

25,408,772
32,604
(217,042)
(1,542,107)
-

(6,022,029)
7,050,000
19,866
20,000

-

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES		

16,785,390

23,682,227

1,067,837

-

								
								
Note
								
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax		
Adjustments for :
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation					
Dividend income 			
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment		
Listing expenses paid		
Property, plant and equipment
written off 				
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange		
Interest expense 			
Interest income				

Company
Audited

2009
RM

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment		
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment				
4(d)
Investment in subsidiaries		

62,600

118,000

-

-

(1,952,604)
-

(2,771,101)
-

(1,012,324)

-

NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES 			

(1,890,004)

(2,653,101)

(1,012,324)

-

F O R W A R D 				

14,895,386

21,029,126

55,513

-
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Cash Flow Statements

(cont’d)
For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

F O R W A R D 				

14,895,386

21,029,126

55,513

-

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of new shares		
Listing expenses paid		
Repayment of hire purchase payable		
Proceeds from term loans		
Repayment of term loans		
Net decrease in fixed deposit pledged		
Net movement in trade bills		
Dividends paid 			

7,870,523
(1,672,893)
(2,180,480)
(1,904,000)
(18,000,000)

(45,566)
3,967,300
(1,207,856)
4,070
1,904,000
(13,500,000)

7,870,523
(1,672,893)
(6,000,000)

-

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES 			

(15,886,850)

(8,878,052)

197,630

-

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS		

(991,464)

12,151,074

253,143

-

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES		

(118,556)

(20,310)

-

-

20,704,565

8,573,801

2

2

19,594,545

20,704,565

253,145

2

								
								
Note
								

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

23

			

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
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2009
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Notes To The Financial Statements
For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010
1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated in Malaysia as a public limited liability company. It is domiciled in Malaysia and is
listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office and principal place of business
are as follows :

Registered office
:
			
			
			
			

No. 7 (1st Floor), Jalan Pesta 1/1
Taman Tun Dr. Ismail 1
Jalan Bakri
84000 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

Principal place of business
:
			
			
			

Lot 8726, PTD 6023, Batu 8
Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri
84200 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with the resolution
passed at the Board of Directors meeting held on 8 December 2010.

2.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and provision of management services. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 6. There have been no significant changes in the nature
of these principal activities during the financial year.

3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS
3.1

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a)

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with applicable Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”) and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. At
the beginning of the current financial year, the Group and the Company adopted new FRS which is
mandatory for the financial period beginning on or after 1 July 2009 as described in Note 3.3.

(b)

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, unless otherwise disclosed in the summary of significant accounting policies.

(c)

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements are described in Note 3.5.

(d)

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entities operates (“the functional currency”). All the
financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”) and the figures have been rounded to
nearest RM, unless otherwise stated.
Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
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Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the ability to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group has such power over another entity.
In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in income statements.

(ii)

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries at the balance sheet date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting date as the Company.
Subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method of accounting except for those
subsidiaries acquired under common control.
Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
The purchase method of accounting involves allocating the cost of the acquisition to the fair value
of the assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus any costs
directly attributable to the acquisition.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s interests in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities represents goodwill. Any excess of the
Company’s interests in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised immediately in income statements.
Business combinations under common control are accounted using the merger method of
accounting. Under the merger method of accounting, the results of the subsidiaries are presented
as if the merger had been effected throughout the current and previous financial years. The assets
and liabilities combined are accounted based on the carrying amounts from the perspective of
common control shareholder at the date of transfer. On consolidation, the cost of the merger is
cancelled with the par values of the shares received. Any resulting credit difference is classified
as equity and be regarded as a non-distributable reserve. Any resulting debit difference is first
charged against any suitable capital reserves and then against revenue reserves in case where
there are no suitable capital reserves or they are insufficient to cover the merger deficit.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, intragroup balances, transactions and
unrealised gains or losses are eliminated in full. Uniform accounting policies are adopted in the
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the income statements during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The Group revalues its properties comprising freehold land and buildings every 5 years or at shorter
intervals whenever the fair value of the revalued property, plant and equipment is expected to differ
materially from their carrying amount.
Surplus arising on revaluation are credited to revaluation reserve. Any deficit arising from revaluation
is charged against the revaluation reserve to the extent of a previous surplus held in the revaluation
reserve for the same property, plant and equipment. In all other cases, a decrease in carrying amount
is charged to the income statements. Subsequent to revaluation, any addition is stated at cost whilst
disposal is at cost or valuation as appropriate.
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated until the assets are ready for its intended use.
Freehold land is not depreciated whilst other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight line basis over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates of depreciation used are
as follows :

		
		
		
		

Factory buildings
Factory equipment, plant and machinery
Showroom, renovation, office equipment, furniture and fittings
Motor vehicles

2%
12.5%
10-20%
20%

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year end to
ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates
and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of
property, plant and equipment.
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The policy for the
recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note 3.2(c).
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any
and the net carrying amount is recognised in the income statements and the unutilised portion of the
revaluation surplus on that item, if any, is transferred directly to retained profits.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of assets except for inventories are reviewed for impairment when there is an
indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying
amounts of the assets with their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s net selling price and its value-in-use, which is measured by reference to discounted future cash
flows. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets, or if it is not possible, for the cashgenerating unit.
An impairment loss is charged to the income statements immediately, unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the
extent of previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset.
Subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as reversal of the previous
impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have
been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The
reversal is recognised in the income statements immediately, unless the asset is carried at revalued
amount. A reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued asset is credited directly to revaluation surplus.
However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised
as an expense in the income statements, a reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in
the income statements.

(d)

Leases
(i)

Classification
A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land and buildings are classified as operating or
finance leases in the same way as leases of other assets and the land and buildings elements of a
lease of land and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of a lease classification. All
leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards are classified as operating lease.

(ii)

Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or the up-front
payments made are allocated, whenever necessary, between the land and the buildings elements
in proportion to the relative fair values for leasehold interests in the land element and buildings
element of the lease at the inception of the lease. The up-front payment represents prepaid lease
payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(e)

Inventories
Inventories comprising raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the specific identification and first-in-first-out
bases, as applicable.
The costs of raw materials comprise the original purchase price plus costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location whilst the costs of work-in-progress and finished goods include
the costs of raw materials, packing materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less selling
and distribution costs and all other estimated costs to completion.

(f)

Income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes
payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year and is measured using the tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax
payables in respect of the previous financial year.
Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised. Deferred tax is not recognised from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of transaction, affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is recognised as income or an expense and included in the
income statements for the period, except when it arises from a transaction which is recognised directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity.

(g)

Revenue recognition
(i)

Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment are established.

(ii)

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are shipped/delivered and when the
risks and rewards of ownership have passed to customers.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis that reflects the effective yield on the
asset.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(g)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(iv) Government grant
Government grant that compensates the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in the
income statements.

(h)

Research and development expenditure
Research and development expenditure is charged to the income statements in the financial year in
which it is incurred except insofar as it relates to a clearly defined project which the benefits therefrom
can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value of the future
benefit and is stated at cost incurred less grants received, if any. Such deferred expenditure shall be
amortised through the income statements over the period of the project, upon commencement of
commercial production.

(i)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short term benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, bonuses, social security contributions (“SOCSO”)
and non-monetary benefits are recognised as expenses in the income statements in the financial
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii)

Defined contribution plans
As required by law, companies in Malaysia make contributions to the state pension scheme,
the Employees Provident Fund (“EFP”). Such contributions are recognised as an expenses in the
income statements as incurred.

(j)

Functional and foreign currencies
(i)

Functional currency
The management has determined the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Group operates i.e. functional currency to be Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”).

(ii)

Transactions and balances in foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies during the financial year are converted into RM at rates
of exchange ruling at the dates of transactions unless hedged by forward foreign exchange
contracts, in which case the rates specified in such forward foreign exchange contracts are used.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into
RM at rates of exchange ruling at that date unless hedged by forward foreign exchange contracts,
in which case the rates specified in such forward foreign exchange contracts are used.
All gains or losses arising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from translating
foreign monetary assets and liabilities are taken into the income statements.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(k)

Contingent liability
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other
companies within its group, the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts
for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability
until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the
guarantee.

(l)

Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.

(m) Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has become a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument
classified as liability are reported as expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments
classified as equity are charged directly to equity. Financial instruments are offset when the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(i)

Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realisable value. All known bad debts are written off in the
period in which they are identified. An allowance is made for doubtful debts based on estimates
of possible losses which may arise from non-collection of certain receivable accounts.

(ii)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits, bank and cash balances and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to cash with insignificant risks of changes in value, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts, if any.

(iii) Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for
goods and services received.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont’d)
(m) Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iv) Bank borrowings
Bank borrowings are recorded at the amount of proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Borrowing costs directly incurred in financing the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised, until such time that the assets are ready for their intended use.
All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statements in the period they are incurred.
(v)

Equity instruments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in
the period in which they are declared.
The transaction costs of an equity transaction, other than in the context of a business combination,
are accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of tax. Equity transaction costs comprise only
those incremental external costs directly attributable to the equity transaction which would
otherwise have been avoided. Cost of issuing equity securities in connection with a business
combination is included in the cost of acquisition.

(vi) Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses derivative financial instruments in the form of forward foreign exchange contracts
to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange arising from operating activities. In accordance with
its treasury policy, the Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes.
Derivative financial instruments are not recognised in the financial statements on inception.
			
The underlying foreign currency assets or liabilities are translated at their respective hedged
exchange rates and all exchange gains or losses are recognised as income or expense in the
income statements in the same period as the exchange differences on the underlying hedged
items. Exchange gains and losses arising on contracts entered into as hedges of anticipated future
transactions are deferred until the date of such transaction, at which time they are included in the
measurement of such transactions.
3.3

Effects Arising from Adoption of New Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”)
During the current financial year, the Group has adopted the following new accounting standard :
FRS 8 – Operating Segments
This FRS is expected to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group upon its initial
application.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.4

New/Revised Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”), Amendments and Issues Committee (“IC”)
Interpretations that are Not Yet Effective
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRSs, Amendments and IC
Interpretations have been issued but not yet effective, and therefore have not been applied by the Group
and the Company :
FRSs, Amendments and IC Interpretations

Effective date

Revised FRS 1 (2010)
Revised FRS 3 (2010)

: First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
: Business Combinations

FRS 4
FRS 7

: Insurance Contracts
: Financial Instruments : Disclosures

1 January 2010
1 January 2010

Revised FRS 101 (2009)
Revised FRS 123 (2009)
Revised FRS 127 (2010)
Revised FRS 139 (2010)

:
:
:
:

1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 July 2010
1 January 2010

Presentation of Financial Statements
Borrowing Costs
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Financial Instruments : Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to FRS 1
: First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
				 and FRS 127 : Consolidated and Separate Financial
				 Statements : Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
				 Controlled Entity or Associate
Amendments to FRS 1
: Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7 Disclosures
				 for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 1
: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 2
: Share-based Payment – Vesting Conditions and
				 Cancellations
Amendments to FRS 2
: Share-based Payment
Amendments to FRS 2
: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to FRS 5
: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
				 Operations
Amendments to FRS 7, FRS 139 and IC Interpretation 9
Amendments to FRS 7
: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
Amendments to FRS 132 : Financial Instruments : Presentation
					
Amendments to FRS 138 : Intangible Assets
IC Interpretation 4
:
IC Interpretation 9
:
IC Interpretation 10
:
IC Interpretation 11
:
IC Interpretation 12
:
IC Interpretation 13
:
IC Interpretation 14
:
				
IC Interpretation 15
:
IC Interpretation 16
:
IC Interpretation 17
:

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
FRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions
Service Concession Arrangements
Customer Loyalty Programmes
FRS 119 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operations
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

1 July 2010
1 July 2010

1 January 2010

1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2010
1 July 2010
1 January 2011
1 July 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2011
1 January 2010/
1 March 2010
1 July 2010
1 January 2011
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 July 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2012
1 July 2010
1 July 2010
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.4

New/Revised Financial Reporting Standards (“FRSs”), Amendments and Issues Committee (“IC”)
Interpretations that are Not Yet Effective (Cont’d)
FRSs, Amendments and IC Interpretations

Effective date

IC Interpretation 18

1 January 2011

Amendments to
		 IC Interpretation 9

: Transfers of Assets from Customers
: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

Amendments to FRSs “Improvements to FRSs (2009)”

1 July 2010
1 January 2010

The directors anticipate that the abovementioned FRSs, Amendments and IC Interpretations will be adopted
when they become effective and that the adoption of these FRSs, Amendments and IC Interpretations will
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company in the period of initial
application except for the following :
FRS 7, Revised FRS 139 (2010) and subsequent Amendments
The possible impacts of FRS 7 (including the subsequent amendments) and the revised FRS 139 (2010) on
the financial statements upon their initial applications are not disclosed by virtue of the exemptions given in
these standards.
Revised FRS 101 (2009)
The revised FRS 101 (2009) has introduced terminology changes (including revised titles for the financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the financial statements. In addition, a statement
of financial position is required at the beginning of the earliest comparative period following a change in
accounting policy, the correction of an error or the reclassification of items in the financial statements. The
adoption of this revised standard will only impact the form and content of the presentation of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial statements in the next financial year.
Amendment to FRS 117 : Leases
FRS 117 Leases : Clarifies on the classification of leases of land and buildings. The Group is still assessing the
potential implication as a result of the reclassification of its unexpired land leases as operating or finance
leases. For those land element held under operating leases that are required to be reclassified as finance
leases, the Group shall recognise a corresponding asset and liability in the financial statements which will be
applied retrospectively upon initial application. However, in accordance with the transitional provision, the
Group is permitted to reassess lease classification on the basis of the facts and circumstances existing on the
date it adopts the amendments; and recognise the asset and liability related to a land lease newly classified
as a finance lease at their fair values on that date; any difference between those fair values is recognised in
retained profits. The Group is currently in the process of assessing the impact of this amendment.
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3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND STANDARDS (CONT’D)
3.5

Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below :
(a)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines whether property, plant and equipment are impaired on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) to which property, plant
and equipment are allocated. Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flow from the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line method over their useful lives.
Management estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and equipment to be within 5 to 10
years except for buildings which are 50 years.
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these property, plant and equipment, therefore future depreciation
charges could be revised.

(c)

Income tax
Significant judgment is required in determining the capital allowances and deductibility of certain
expenses during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for tax based on estimates of assessment of the tax liability
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.
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4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group - At 31 August 2010
				
							
						
Factory
					 equipment,
					
Factory
plant and
				
Freehold land buildings machinery
				
RM
RM
RM
At Cost / Valuation
At 1 September 2009
Additions
Disposals
Write off

6,770,988
-

13,165,726
-

8,628,974
1,716,332
(150,000)
(25,231)

At 31 August 2010

6,770,988

13,165,726

Representing :
At valuation
At cost

4,675,808
2,095,180

			

Showroom,
renovation,
office
equipment,		
Capital
furniture
Motor
work-in
and fittings vehicles progress
RM
RM
RM

Total
RM

1,401,455 1,066,488
140,484
148,593
(36,780)
-

93,706
-

31,033,631
2,099,115
(150,000)
(62,011)

10,170,075

1,505,159

1,215,081

93,706

32,920,735

12,975,174
190,552

10,170,075

1,505,159

1,215,081

93,706

17,650,982
15,269,753

6,770,988

13,165,726

10,170,075

1,505,159

1,215,081

93,706

32,920,735

Less : Accumulated
			 Depreciation
At 1 September 2009
Charge for the financial
		 year
Disposals
Write off

-

416,047

2,394,867

501,502

732,379

-

4,044,795

-

263,314
-

1,188,366
(101,150)
(25,231)

222,143
(22,483)

143,184
-

-

1,817,007
(101,150)
(47,714)

At 31 August 2010

-

679,361

3,456,852

701,162

875,563

-

5,712,938

Less : Impairment Losses
At 1 September 2009
Additions

75,808
-

-

-

-

-

-

75,808
-

At 31 August 2010

75,808

-

-

-

-

-

75,808

			

75,808

679,361

3,456,852

701,162

875,563

-

5,788,746

Representing :
At valuation
At cost

75,808
-

670,383
8,978

3,456,852

701,162

875,563

-

746,191
5,042,555

75,808

679,361

3,456,852

701,162

875,563

-

5,788,746

Carrying Amount
At 31 August 2010

6,695,180

12,486,365

6,713,223

803,997

339,518

93,706

27,131,989

Representing :
At valuation
At cost

4,600,000
2,095,180

12,304,791
181,574

6,713,223

803,997

339,518

93,706

16,904,791
10,227,198

6,695,180

12,486,365

6,713,223

803,997

339,518

93,706

27,131,989
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4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

Proforma Group - At 31 August 2009
				
							
						
Factory
					 equipment,
		 			
Factory
plant and
				
Freehold land
buildings
machinery
				
RM
RM
RM

Showroom,
renovation,
office
equipment,
furniture
and fittings
RM

Motor
vehicles
RM

Total
RM

At Cost / Valuation
At 1 September 2008
Additions
Disposals
Write off

6,770,988
-

13,165,726
-

6,402,043
2,385,556
(158,625)
-

1,101,631
315,913
(16,089)

1,009,656
75,332
(18,500)
-

28,450,044
2,776,801
(177,125)
(16,089)

At 31 August 2009

6,770,988

13,165,726

8,628,974

1,401,455

1,066,488

31,033,631

Representing :
At valuation
At cost

4,675,808
2,095,180

12,975,174
190,552

8,628,974

1,401,455

1,066,488

17,650,982
13,382,649

6,770,988

13,165,726

8,628,974

1,401,455

1,066,488

31,033,631

At 1 September 2008
Charge for the financial year
Disposals
Write off

-

152,732
263,315
-

1,396,339
1,010,443
(11,915)
-

316,974
200,617
(16,089)

566,723
181,997
(16,341)
-

2,432,768
1,656,372
(28,256)
(16,089)

At 31 August 2009

-

416,047

2,394,867

501,502

732,379

4,044,795

Less : Impairment Losses
At 1 September 2008
Additions

75,808
-

-

-

-

-

75,808
-

At 31 August 2009

75,808

-

-

-

-

75,808

75,808

416,047

2,394,867

501,502

732,379

4,120,603

75,808
-

410,880
5,167

2,394,867

501,502

732,379

486,688
3,633,915

75,808

416,047

2,394,867

501,502

732,379

4,120,603

Carrying Amount
At 31 August 2009

6,695,180

12,749,679

6,234,107

899,953

334,109

26,913,028

Representing :
At valuation
At cost

4,600,000
2,095,180

12,564,294
185,385

6,234,107

899,953

334,109

17,164,294
9,748,734

6,695,180

12,749,679

6,234,107

899,953

334,109

26,913,028

				
Less : Accumulated
			 Depreciation

				
Representing :
At valuation
At cost
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4.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
(a)

The freehold land and factory buildings of the Group were last revalued based on the valuation carried out
by an independent firm of professional valuers in January 2008 on the open market value basis.

(b)

The carrying amount of the Group’s revalued property, plant and equipment that would have been included
in the financial statements stated at cost less accumulated depreciation are as follows :

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Group

Proforma
2009
RM

				 Carrying Amount
				 Freehold land				
				 Factory buildings				

4,251,179
9,722,343

4,251,179
9,934,064

											
							

13,973,522

14,185,243

(c)

The following property, plant and equipment of the Group are charged against bank borrowings (Note 12) :

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Group

Proforma
2009
RM

				 Carrying Amount
				 Freehold land				
				 Factory buildings				

3,530,000
10,712,713

3,530,000
10,938,622

										

14,242,713

14,468,622

(d)

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

				 Aggregate cost of property, plant and equipment acquired		
				 Unpaid balance included under sundry payables (Note 14(b))		
				 Cash paid in respect of acquisitions in the previous financial year

2,099,115
(174,687)
28,176

2,776,801
(32,376)
26,676

				 Cash paid during the financial year			

1,952,604

2,771,101

(e)

54

Purchase of property, plant and equipment are as follows :
Group

Proforma
2009
RM

There is no property, plant and equipment in the Company throughout the current and previous financial
years.
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(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

5.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Group

		 At 1 September 				
		 Less : Amortisation of prepaid lease payments			

1,181,539
(13,846)

1,195,385
(13,846)

		 At 31 August 				

1,167,693

1,181,539

		 Analysed as :
		 Leasehold land				

1,167,693

1,181,539

Proforma
2009
RM

The leasehold land is charged against bank borrowings granted to a subsidiary (Note 12).

6.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

		
		
											
											
		 Unquoted shares - at cost				
			
(a)

2010
RM
37,191,799

Company
Audited

2009
RM
-

Subsidiaries
The principal activities of the subsidiaries, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, and the equity interest
held by the Company are shown below :

Name of Company
Principal Activities
								

Equity Interest
2010
2009

				 Home Upholstery Industries Sdn. Bhd.
								
								

Design, manufacture and sale of
upholstery furniture products and
investment holding.

100%

-

				 U.S. Furniture Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd.

Property investment holding.

100%

-

(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries
During the financial year, the Company completed the acquisition of subsidiaries as per Note 29(i) for a total
purchase consideration of RM 37,191,799. This acquisition was made in conjunction with and as an integral
part of the Company’s listing exercise.
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(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

6.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)
(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Cont’d)
The details of the assets and liabilities of Home Upholstery Industries Sdn. Bhd. and its former subsidiary,
U. S. Furniture Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd., accounted for under the merger method of accounting at the date
of merger, are as follows :

												
				
				
				
				

RM

Non-current assets					
Current assets					
Non-current liabilities				
Current liabilities				

28,094,567
40,578,225
(7,455,983)
(24,853,362)

				 Fair value of net assets acquired					
							
							

36,363,447

7.

INVENTORIES

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Group

Proforma
2009
RM

		 At Cost
		 Raw materials					
		 Work-in-progress				
		 Finished goods				

14,292,886
2,471,571
748,071

9,073,493
2,354,552
402,250

											

17,512,528

11,830,295

8.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

		 Deposit to suppliers		
		 Other trade receivables		

145,871
5,906,465

582,010
5,835,777

-

-

									

6,052,336

6,417,787

-

-

								
									
								

Company
Audited

2009
RM

		 Trade Receivables
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(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

8.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

Amounts due from subsidiaries		
Deposits 			
Prepayments			
Sundry receivables		

141,450
1,191,564
52,911

121,250
1,434,718
58,635

5,941,633
2,000
20,000

-

									

1,385,925

1,614,603

5,963,633

-

				

7,438,261

8,032,390

5,963,633

-

								
									
								

Company
Audited

2009
RM

		 Other Receivables
		
		
		
		

9.

					

(a)

The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from cash term to 90 days (2009 : cash term to 90 days). Other
credit terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

(b)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

DEPOSITS, BANK AND CASH BALANCES
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

		 Bank and cash balances		
		 Fixed deposits placed with licensed banks
		 Short term deposit placed with
			 licensed bank		

13,116,882
5,537,663

17,704,565
3,000,000

253,145
-

2
-

940,000

-

-

-

									

19,594,545

20,704,565

253,145

2

								
									
								

Company
Audited

2009
RM

(a)

The weighted average effective interest rates for all deposits placed with licensed banks of the Group at the
end of the financial year are 2.69% (2009 : 2.20%) per annum.

(b)

The maturity periods for all deposits placed with licensed banks of the Group at the end of the financial year
are 3 days to 1 months (2009 : 1 month).
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(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

10. SHARE CAPITAL
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

		 Authorised :
		 Balance at the beginning of the financial year
100,000
		 Created during the financial year
99,900,000

100,000
-

100,000
99,900,000

100,000
-

		 Balance at the end of the financial year

100,000

100,000,000

100,000

36,179,477

2

2

-

36,179,475
2,020,523
1,800,000

-

36,179,477

40,000,000

2

								
									
								

Company
Audited

2009
RM

		 Ordinary Shares Of RM 0.20 Each

		
		
		
		
		
		

100,000,000

Issued and fully paid :
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 36,179,477
Issued during the financial year :
- acquisition of subsidiaries		
- rights issue			
2,020,523
- public issue		
1,800,000

		 Balance at the end of the financial year

40,000,000

During the financial year, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from RM 100,000 to
RM 100,000,000 by the creation of 199,800,000 new ordinary shares of RM 0.50 each. Meanwhile, the issued and paidup share capital was increased from RM 2 to RM 40,000,000 by the issuance of new ordinary shares as follows:
		
Date Of Allotment
Number Of Shares
			

Par Value
RM

Consideration

(a)

15 September 2009

72,358,950

0.50

Shares issued at RM 0.50 per share in
consideration for the acquisition of the entire
issued and paid-up share capital of Home
Upholstery Industries Sdn. Bhd..

(b)

26 November 2009

361,794,770

0.10

Share split at par value of every one (1) existing
ordinary share of RM 0.50 each into five (5)
ordinary shares of RM 0.10 each.

(c)

26 November 2009

180,897,385

0.20

Consolidation of par value of every two (2)
existing ordinary shares of RM 0.10 each into
one (1) ordinary share of RM 0.20 each.

(d)

30 November 2009

10,102,615

0.20

Rights issue at RM 0.20 per share.

(e)

12 February 2010

9,000,000

0.20

Public Issue at an issue price of RM 0.65 per
share.

Upon completion of the above subdivision and consolidation on 26 November 2009, the authorised share capital
of the Company is RM 100,000,000 comprising 500,000,000 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each.
The resultant premium arising from the shares issued in (e) of RM 4,050,000 was credited to the share premium
account (Note 11).
The new ordinary shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing ordinary shares of the
Company.
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For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

11. RESERVES
								
									
								

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

		 Non-Distributable
		 Share premium		

3,016,904

-

3,016,904

-

		 Distributable
		 Retained profits/(Accumulated loss)

14,226,929

172,035

304,273

(11,937)

									

17,243,833

172,035

3,321,177

(11,937)

(a)

Company
Audited

2009
RM

Share Premium
Share premium represents the resultant premium arising from the public issue, net off with listing expenses
of RM 1,033,096.

(b)

Retained Profits
Retained profits are those available for distribution by way of dividends.
In accordance with the Finance Act 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, companies shall not
be entitled to deduct tax on dividend paid, credited or distributed to its shareholders, and such dividends
will be exempted from tax in the hands of the shareholders (“single tier system”). As the Company was only
incorporated on 6 February 2008 and did not have any Section 108 balance prior to 31 December 2007,
distributions out of the Company’s retained profits to shareholders of the Company shall be made under the
single tier system.

(c)

Merger Deficit
Under the merger method of accounting, the difference between the acquisition cost and the nominal value
of the share capital of the subsidiaries is taken to the merger deficit. The merger deficit is first charged against
revaluation reserves and then against retained profits as follows :
Proforma Group
Retained
Profits
RM

										
										
										

Revaluation
Reserve
RM

				 Balance before offsetting against merger deficit
				 Merger deficit arising from acquisition of subsidiaries

2,430,366
(2,430,366)

36,293,269
(33,299,109)

38,723,635
(35,729,475)

-

2,994,160

2,994,160

				 Balance at 1 September 2008

		

Total
RM
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For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

12. BANK BORROWINGS

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Group

		 Current
		 Secured - Term loans				
					 - Trade bills				

324,684
-

461,243
1,904,000

Proforma
2009
RM

										
		 Non-Current
		 Secured - Term loans				

324,684

2,365,243

3,352,483

5,396,404

										

3,677,167

7,761,647

		 Analysis Of Bank Borrowings
		 Term loans						
		 Trade bills 					

3,677,167
-

5,857,647
1,904,000

											

3,677,167

7,761,647

(a)

(b)

The bank borrowings are secured against :
(i)

Certain freehold land and factory buildings of a subsidiary (Note 4(c)).

(ii)

A subsidiary’s leasehold land (Note 5).

(iii)

Corporate guarantee by the Company and a subsidiary.

(iv)

Joint and several guarantee by certain directors of the Company.

The weighted average effective interest rate for trade bills at the end of the financial year is NIL (2009 : 2.90%)
per annum.

(c)

The term loans bear effective interest rates at 4.55% (2009 : 3.80% to 6.35%) per annum and are repayable by
120 monthly instalments (2009 : 120 to 180 monthly instalments). At the end of the financial year, they are
repayable as follows :
		
Group
											
Audited
Proforma
											
2010
2009
											
RM
RM
				 Current
				 Not later than one year

			

324,684

461,243

Non-Current
Later than one year and not later than two years			
Later than two years and not later than five years
		
Later than five years
			

339,770
1,116,993
1,895,720

482,414
1,584,908
3,329,082

											

3,352,483

5,396,404

											

3,677,167

5,857,647
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For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Group

Proforma
2009
RM

		 (a) Movements of deferred tax liabilities
		 		 At 1 September				
				 Deferred tax expense relating to the origination of temporary differences

2,059,579
28,000

1,761,579
298,000

				 At 31 August				

2,087,579

2,059,579

		 (b) Component of deferred tax liabilities
				 Excess of capital allowances over corresponding book depreciation		
				 Revaluation surplus of properties				

1,241,059
846,520

1,197,530
862,049

											

2,087,579

2,059,579

							

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

		 Deposits from customers		
		 Other trade payables		

1,198,624
5,354,966

1,212,925
4,995,111

-

-

									

6,553,590

6,208,036

-

-

		 Accruals 				
		 Sundry payables		

1,567,796
1,487,693

1,376,472
1,956,010

87,400
-

800
11,137

									

3,055,489

3,332,482

87,400

11,937

									

9,609,079

9,540,518

87,400

11,937

								
									
								

Company
Audited

2009
RM

		 Trade Payables

		 Other Payables

(a)

The normal trade terms granted to the Group range from cash term to 120 days (2009 : cash term to 120
days).

(b)

Included in sundry payables is an amount of RM 174,687 (2009 : RM 32,376) payable for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment.
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For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

15. REVENUE
Revenue of the Group and of the Company comprises the following :
								
									
								

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

Company
Audited

2010
RM

		 Dividend income		
		 Invoiced value of goods sold net of
			 discounts and returns		

-

-

7,100,000

-

109,969,268

108,439,444

-

-

									

109,969,268

108,439,444

7,100,000

-

2009
RM

							

16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(a)

								
									
								

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

Directors of the Company
Executive Directors :
Allowances		
Bonuses			
EPF				
Salaries 		
SOCSO			

6,000
180,000
171,000
720,000
1,240

-

6,000
-

-

									

1,078,240

-

6,000

-

				 Non-executive Directors :
				 Allowances		
				 Fee				

8,500
70,000

-

8,500
70,000

-

									

78,500

-

78,500

-

									

1,156,740

-

84,500

-
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The members of key management personnel of the Group and of the Company comprise the Executive
Directors. Details on the compensation for these key management personnel are disclosed as follows :
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Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)
(a)

The members of key management personnel of the Group and of the Company comprise the Executive
Directors. Details on the compensation for these key management personnel are disclosed as follows: (Cont’d)

								
									
								

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

Directors of the Subsidiaries
Executive Directors :
Allowances		
Bonus			
EPF				
Salaries			
SOCSO			

-

43,200
60,000
57,000
196,800
1,240

-

-

									

-

358,240

-

-

1,156,740

358,240

84,500

-

				 Estimated monetary value of
					 benefits-in-kind
				 - Executive directors of the Company
				 - Executive directors of the Subsidiaries

28,500
-

36,000

-

-

									

28,500

36,000

-

-

				
				
				
				
				
				
				

				 Total Directors’ Remuneration

Company
Audited

2009
RM

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group and of the Company whether directly or indirectly.
(b)

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the
following bands is analysed as below :

		
		
											

Group
Number Of Directors
2010
2009

				 Executive Directors :
				 RM 500,001 - RM 550,000				

2

-

				 Non-executive Directors :
				 RM 1 - RM 50,000				

3

-
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17. STAFF COSTS
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

1,078,240

358,240

6,000

-

Other Staff Costs
Salaries and other emoluments		
EPF 					
SOCSO					
Other staff related expenses		

8,601,503
275,447
26,077
1,077,313

7,873,516
268,810
22,988
863,512

-

-

									

9,980,340

9,028,826

-

-

		 Total Staff Costs		

11,058,580

9,387,066

6,000

-

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

13,846

13,846

-

-

41,000

23,600

15,000

800

3,000
1,817,007
639,797

2,000
1,656,372
-

639,797

-

14,297
810,683
86,400
92,500
1,308,105
107,840

30,869
476,786
86,400
119,500
5,000
1,158,256
6,900

-

-

(11,914)

(7,111)

-

-

(13,750)
(114,618)

(133,736)

-

-

								
									
								
		 Executive Directors’ Remuneration
			 (excluding benefits-in-kind) (Note 16)
		
		
		
		
		

Company
Audited

2009
RM

18. RESULTS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
								
									
								
		 This is arrived at after charging :
		 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
		 Auditors’ remuneration :
		 - current 			
		 - underprovision in the previous
				 financial year		
		 Depreciation 		
		 Listing expenses		
		 Loss on disposal of property, plant
			 and equipment		
		 Property, plant and equipment written off
		 Realised loss on foreign exchange		
		 Rental of factory		
		 Rental of hostel		
		 Rental of store		
		 Research and development expenses
		 Unrealised loss on foreign exchange
		 And crediting :
		 Compensation and others		
		 Gain on disposal of property, plant
			 and equipment		
		 Government grant		
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Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

19. FINANCE COSTS

		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

Interest On :
Hire purchase					
Term loans						
Trade bills 					

230,445
-

402
191,937
24,703

											

230,445

217,042

		
		
		
		

Group

Proforma
2009
RM

							

20. TAX EXPENSE
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

1,427,000

2,000,000

30,000

-

28,000

298,000

-

-

178,595
-

(17,603)
-

-

-

1,633,595

2,280,397

30,000

-

		 (b) Reconciliation of income tax expense
				 Profit/(Loss) before tax		
21,688,489

24,958,272

6,346,210

(6,097)

6,240,000

1,587,000

(2,900)

(25,000)
(265,000)
407,000
(4,059,000)

(1,725,000)
168,000
-

2,900
-

(17,603)
-

-

-

2,280,397

30,000

-

								
									
								
		 (a) Components of tax expense
				 Current tax expense		
				 Deferred tax expense relating to the
					 origination of temporary differences
				 Under/(Over)provision in previous
					 financial years :
		 		 - current tax expense		
				 - deferred tax expense		
									

				 Tax at Malaysian statutory income
					 tax rate		
5,423,000
				 Effect of lower tax rate of 20% on the first
					 chargeable income of RM 500,000
(25,000)
				 Tax effect of double deduction relief
(600,000)
				 Tax effect of non-taxable income		
				 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
244,000
				 Utilisation of tax incentive		
(3,460,000)
				 Under/(Over)provision in previous
					 financial years :
				 - current tax expense
178,595
				 - deferred tax expense		
				 Others			
(127,000)
									

1,633,595

Company
Audited

2009
RM

Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
Annual Report 2010

65

Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)
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20. TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)
		 (b)

Reconciliation of income tax expense (Cont’d)
The statutory tax rate is 25% for year of assessment 2010 and the subsequent years of assessment.
Consequently, the computation of deferred tax is also based on the statutory tax rate of 25%.
Subsidiaries of the Company qualify for the lower statutory tax rate of 20% on the first chargeable income of
RM 500,000 (2009 : RM 500,000) during the financial year.

(c)

At the end of the financial year, the Group has the unutilised increased export allowance amounting to
RM 5.9 million (2009 : RM 5.9 million) available for offsetting against future taxable profits subject to the
agreement of the Inland Revenue Board.

21. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.
		
											
											
											

Audited
2010
RM

		 Profit for the financial year				

20,054,894

22,677,875

											
											

2010
Units

2009
Units

Number of ordinary shares in issue at the beginning of financial year
Effect of ordinary shares issued during the financial year :
- Rights issue				
- Public issue				

180,897,385

180,897,385

7,611,559
4,956,165

-

		 Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue			

193,465,109

180,897,385

		 Basic earnings per ordinary share (sen)				

10.37

12.54

		 Par value (sen)

20.00

20.00

		
		
		
		

			

Group

Proforma
2009
RM

For the purpose of calculating the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year in
which the merger of subsidiaries occurred, the number of shares in issue from the beginning of the financial year to
the date immediately before rights issue is deemed to include the shares issued for the acquisition of subsidiaries
as per Note 29(i) and the share split and consolidation as per Note 29 (ii), whereas the number of shares in issue
from the date of rights issue to the end of the financial year is the actual number of shares in issue during that
period.
The diluted earnings per share equals the basic earnings per share as the Company did not have any dilutive
potential ordinary shares during the financial year.
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For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

22. DIVIDENDS
Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

		 In respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2008
		 First and final tax-exempt dividend of
			 approximately 8.29% on 180,897,385
			 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each		
-

3,000,000

-

-

		 In respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2009
		 First interim tax-exempt dividend of
			 approximately 8.29% on 180,897,385
			 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each		
-

10,500,000

-

-

		 Special tax-exempt dividend of
			 approximately 33.17% on 180,897,385
			 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each		

-

12,000,000

-

-

		 In respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2010
		 First interim tax-exempt dividend of 6%
			 equivalent to 1.2 sen per share on 200,000,000
			 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each
2,400,000

-

2,400,000

-

		 Second interim tax-exempt dividend of 9%
			 equivalent to 1.8 sen per share on 200,000,000
			 ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each
3,600,000

-

3,600,000

-

25,500,000

6,000,000

-

								
									
								

									

6,000,000

Company
Audited

2009
RM

Pending the declaration of dividend by a subsidiary totaling RM 4,200,000, the Board of Directors proposes a final
single tier tax-exempt dividend of 10.5% equivalent to 2.1 sen per ordinary share amounting to RM 4,200,000 in
respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2010. This dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in the financial statements. Such
dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained profits
for the financial year ending 31 August 2011.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statements comprise the following amounts :
								
									
								

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

Company
Audited

2010
RM

		 Bank and cash balances		
		 Deposits placed with licensed banks		

13,116,882
6,477,663

17,704,565
3,000,000

253,145
-

2
-

									

19,594,545

20,704,565

253,145

2

2009
RM

Homeritz Corporation Berhad (Company No. 805792-X)
Annual Report 2010

67

Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)
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24. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company
had the following transactions with related parties during the financial year :

								
									
								

Audited
2010
RM

Group
Proforma
2009
RM

2010
RM

				 Subsidiary
				 - Dividend received		

-

-

(7,100,000)

-

(59,192)
1,430

-

-

-

				 Corporations in which certain Directors
					 of the Company have direct or
					 indirect financial interest
				 - Sale of goods		
				 - Transportation services		

Company
Audited

2009
RM

(b)

Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related party transactions at 31 August 2010 are
disclosed in Note 8 and Note 14.

(c)

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The compensation of key management personnel who are the Directors of the Group and of the Company
are detailed in Note 16.

25. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 August, the Group has the following capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment :
		
											
											

2010
RM

		 Contracted but not provided for				

4,360,000

Group

2009
RM
-

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
At 31 August 2010, the banking facilities of certain subsidiaries are guaranteed by the Company. Accordingly, the
Company is contingently liable to the extent of the credit facilities utilised by the said subsidiaries amounting to
approximately RM 4.1 million at the end of the financial year.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

27. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
The segmental information is not presented as the Group is principally involved in design, manufacture and sale of
upholstered furniture products which is predominantly carried out in Malaysia.

28. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
In accordance with the principles of merger accounting, the balance sheets, income statements, statements
of changes in equity, cash flow statements and the related notes to the financial statements of the Group are
presented as if the subsidiaries have been owned throughout the current and preceding financial years. Accordingly,
comparative figures of the Group have been presented.

29. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
During the financial year, the Company completed the following transactions as an integral part of the listing and
quotation of the entire issued and paid-up share capital of the Company on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”).
(i)

Acquisition of the entire issued and paid-up share capital of Home Upholstery Industries Sdn. Bhd. (“HUI”)
comprising 450,000 ordinary shares of RM 1.00 each for a total purchase consideration of RM 36,179,475
which satisfied by issuance of 72,358,950 new ordinary shares of RM 0.50 each of the Company at an issue
price of RM 0.50 per share. After the aforesaid acquisition, the Company also acquire from HUI 100% of issued
and paid-up share capital of U.S. Furniture Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd., comprising 50,002 ordinary shares of RM
1.00 each for a total cash consideration of RM 1,012,324.
The above acquisition of subsidiaries were completed on 15 September 2009.

(ii)

Subdivision of one (1) ordinary share of RM 0.50 each of the Company into five (5) ordinary shares of RM
0.10 each. After the aforesaid subdivision, a consolidation of two (2) ordinary shares of RM 0.10 each of the
Company into one (1) ordinary share of RM 0.20 each was undertaken.
The above subdivision and consolidation was completed on 26 November 2009.

(iii)

Rights issue of 10,102,615 new ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each at par to all shareholders of the Company
after the above subdivision and consolidation on the basis of approximately 0.0558 new ordinary shares
for every one (1) existing ordinary share then held in the Company. The rights issue was completed on 30
November 2009.

(iv)

Public issue of 9,000,000 new ordinary shares of RM 0.20 each at an issue price of RM 0.65 per share. The
public issue was completed on 12 February 2010.

The Company was officially listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 19 February 2010.

30. EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE SHEET DATE
On 18 November 2010, the Group through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Home Upholstery Industries Sdn. Bhd.
entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Central Plastic Industry Sdn. Bhd. for the acquisition
of a piece of freehold land held under Title 406528 Lot 16680 for a total cash consideration of RM 1,267,525.
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Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s financial risk management policies seek to ensure that adequate financial resources are available
for the development of the Group’s business whilst managing its risks. The Group operates within clearly
defined guidelines and the Group’s policies are not to engage in speculative transactions.
The main areas of financial risks faced by the Group and the policies in respect of the major areas of treasury
activities are set out as follows :
(i)

Interest Rate Risk
The Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing debts obtained from the financial
institutions in Malaysia. It has no substantial long term interest-bearing assets at 31 August 2009 and
2010. The investment in financial assets i.e. deposits placed with licensed banks are short term in nature
and are not held for speculative purposes. The Group does not hedge interest rate risk and endeavours
to obtain borrowings at competitive interest rates under the most favourable terms and conditions.

(ii)

Credit Risk
Credit risk with respect to trade and other receivables is managed through the application of credit
approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures. Credit is extended to the customers based upon
careful evaluation of the customers’ financial position and credit history.
At balance sheet date, the Group has a significant concentration of credit risk in the form of trade debts
due from two (2009 : two) customers representing approximately 50% (2009 : 30%) of the total trade
receivables.

(iii) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group’s operations are exposed to fluctuation in various currencies, mainly Euro (“EURO”),
Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) and United States Dollar (“USD”). Foreign currency denominated assets and
liabilities together with expected cash flows from highly probable purchases and sales give rise to
foreign exchange exposures.
Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than functional currencies of the
operating entities are kept to an acceptable level. Material foreign currency transaction exposures are
hedged, mainly with derivative financial instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts.
The net unhedged financial assets and liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in their
functional currencies are as follows :
										
									
Euro
						 At 31 August 2010 (Audited)
						 Ringgit Malaysia		
						 At 31 August 2009 (Proforma)
						 Ringgit Malaysia		
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Singapore
Dollar

United States
Dollar

Total

700,006

43,405

14,034,310

14,777,721

11,741

62,842

13,828,991

13,903,574

Notes To The Financial Statements

(cont’d)

For The Financial Year Ended 31 August 2010

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a)

Financial Risk Management Policies (cont’d)
(iv) Liquidity Risk
The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding
so as to ensure that all refinancing, repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall prudent
liquidity management, the Group maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible investment to
meet its working capital requirements. As far as possible, the Group raises committed funding from
licensed financial institutions and prudently balances its portfolio with some short term funding so as
to achieve overall cost effectiveness.

(b)

Fair Values
Recognised Financial Instruments
The methodologies used in arriving at the fair values of the principal financial assets and liabilities of the
Group are as follows :
(i)

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables are considered to approximate
their carrying amounts as they are either payable on demand or within the normal credit terms or they
have short maturity.

(ii)

The fair value of term loans approximates their carrying amount as the interest rate is on floating rate
basis.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts at 31 August 2010.
Unrecognised Financial Instruments
									
Amount in
									
foreign
								
Currency
currency
										

Matures
within
one year
RM

Total
notional
amount
RM

Net fair
value
RM

				 At 31 August 2010 (Audited)
				 Forward foreign exchange
					 contracts

USD

1,300,000

4,318,660

4,318,660

230,000

				 At 31 August 2009 (Proforma)
				 Forward foreign exchange
					 contracts

USD

1,400,000

4,965,050

4,965,050

28,311

The net unrecognised gain at 31 August 2010 on forward foreign exchange contracts used to hedge
anticipated receivables which are expected to receive within twelve (12) months amounted to RM 230,000
(2009 : RM 28,311).
The net fair value of a forward foreign exchange contract is the amount that would be receivable on
termination of the outstanding position arising therefrom and is determined by reference to the difference
between the contracted rate and forward exchange rate at the balance sheet date applied to a contract of
similar quantum and maturity profile.
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List Of Properties
At 31 August 2010

Registered
Owner
Location

72

Description
and existing
use

Tenure/
Expiry of
Lease

Date of
Issuance of
Category of
Certificate
Age of
Land Use/
NBV as at
Date of
of Fitness
Buildings Land Area/ 31.08.2010 valuation/
for
(Years) Built Up Area
RM acquisition Occupation

USF

Lot No. 8726,
PN 9634, Mukim
of Jalan Bakri,
District of Muar,
State of Johor

A plot of
industrial land
erected with
a block of
single-storey
factory building
together with
a three-storey
office annexe,
an extended
first floor
factory and
lean to sheds,
showroom and
other ancillary
structures*

Leasehold
for a term
of 99 years/
Expiring
on 29
December
2094

10

Industrial/
9,030 sq. m./
9,051 sq. m.

4,931,678

15.01.2008

HUI

Lot PTD
No. 9495,
HSD 31616,
Mukim of
Jalan Bakri,
District of Muar,
State of Johor

A plot of
industrial land
erected with
a block of
single-storey
factory building
and a guard
house.

Freehold

3

Industrial/
7,262 sq. m./
4,391 sq. m.

2,920,979

15.01.2008 11.08.2010**

HUI

Lot Nos. 4943
and 4944,
Geran 85825
and 85826,
both in the
Mukim of
Jalan Bakri,
District of Muar,
State of Johor

Two (2)
adjoining plots
of industrial
land erected
with a block of
single-storey
factory building
together with a
double-storey
office annexe,
a production
office and
other ancillary
structures.

Freehold

3

10,875,723
Industrial/
24,282 sq. m./
17,217 sq. m.
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15.01.2008

03.01.2001

24.11.2009

List Of Properties (cont’d)

At 31 August 2010

Registered
Owner
Location
HUI

HS(D) 33704 and
HS(D) 33703,
Lots PTD 10628
and 10629, both
in the Mukim
of Jalan Bakri,
District of Muar,
State of Johor

Description
and existing
use

Tenure/
Expiry of
Lease

Two (2)
adjoining plots
of industrial
land.

Freehold

Date of
Issuance of
Category of
Certificate
Age of
Land Use/
NBV as at
Date of
of Fitness
Buildings Land Area/ 31.08.2010 valuation/
for
(Years) Built Up Area
RM acquisition Occupation
N/A

Industrial/
15,544 sq. m./
N/A

2,095,180

10.09.2007

N/A

Notes:
*
HUI owns the factory building which was built on Lot 8726.
**

The issuance of the final certificate of fitness for occupation for Lot PTD No. 9495 by the local council is pending the
completion of construction of the access road by the land developer which is underway. Nonetheless, the Group had
obtained the temporary certificate of fitness for occupation from MPM, which will expire on 10 February 2011.

N/A Not applicable.
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Analysis Of Shareholdings
At 30 December 2010

Authorised Share Capital
Issued and Fully Paid Up Share Capital
Class of Shares
Voting Right
Number of Shareholders

: RM100,000,000-00
: RM 40,000,000-00
: Ordinary shares of RM0-20 each
: One vote per ordinary share
: 1,169

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS
			
Size of Shareholdings

No. of
Shareholders

% of
Shareholders

No. of
shares held

% of issued
share capital

3
266
490
358
50
2

0.26
22.75
41.92
30.62
4.28
0.17

14
145,729
3,003,800
12,386,000
40,784,857
143,679,600

0.00
0.07
1.50
6.20
20.39
71.84

1,169

100.00

200,000,000

100.00

Less than 100 shares
100 to 1,000 shares
1,001 to 10,000 shares
10,001 to 100,000 shares
100,001 to 9,999,999 shares*
10,000,000 and above shares**
Total			
Notes:
*
**

Denotes less than 5% of the total number of shares with voting rights in issue.
Denotes 5% and above of the total number of shares with voting rights in issue.

LIST OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
			
Name of Shareholders
Chua Fen Fatt
Tee Hwee Ing

Direct
71,839,800
71,839,800

No. of shares held
%
Indirect
35.92
35.92

%

71,839,800 #
71,839,800 #

35.92
35.92

No. of shares held
%
Indirect

%

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
			
Name of Shareholders
Chua Fen Fatt
Tee Hwee Ing
Mohd Khasan Bin Ahmad
Shamsudin @ Samad Bin Kassim
Tay Puay Chuan

Direct
71,839,800
71,839,800
20,000
20,000
20,000

35.92
35.92
0.01
0.01
0.01

Note :
#

74

Deemed interested by virtue of his/her spouse’s substantial interest in the Company.
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71,839,800 #
71,839,800 #
-

35.92
35.92
-

Analysis Of Shareholdings (cont’d)

At 30 December 2010

LIST OF TOP THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHODERS AT 30 DECEMBER 2010
(AS PER THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS)
			
No. Name of Shareholders

No. of
shares held

% of issued
share capital

1

Chua Fen Fatt

71,839,800

35.92

2

Tee Hwee Ing

71,839,800

35.92

3

Chua Fen Lee

6,150,200

3.08

4

Kumpulan Wang Simpanan Guru-Guru

5,000,000

2.50

5

Pua Yu Heng

4,756,600

2.38

6

ECML Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pledged Securities Account For Ong King Soon

4,358,800

2.18

7

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Employees Provident Fund Board (PHEIM)

2,742,200

1.37

8

Quek Wee Seng

1,998,000

1.00

9

HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.
Exempt An For J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, National Association (Norges BK Lend)

1,634,000

0.82

10

DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Exempt An For Kumpulan Sentiasa Cemerlang Sdn. Bhd. (TSTAC/CLNT)

1,430,000

0.71

11

Eresos Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

1,200,000

0.60

12

Sultan Idris Shah

1,070,000

0.54

13

Syed Mohd Yusof Bin Tun Syed Nasir

1,000,000

0.50

14

Lau Tuang Nguang

1,000,000

0.50

15

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Amtrustee Berhad For Apex Dana Al-Faiz-I (UT-Apex-Faiz)

617,000

0.31

16

Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pheim Asset Management Sdn. Bhd. For Benta Wawasan Sdn. Bhd. (A/C 95-230135)

425,000

0.21

17

Er Tzer Nam

400,000

0.20

18

Lai Ah Kau @ Lai Kuen Vey

396,200

0.20

19

CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
BHLB Trustee Berhad For Apex Dana Aslah (50143 TR01)

384,000

0.19

20

Lee Chin Swan

382,000

0.19

21

Mayban Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pledged Securities Account For Chin Keh Moi

333,000

0.17
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Analysis Of Shareholdings (cont’d)

At 30 December 2010

LIST OF TOP THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHODERS AT 30 DECEMBER 2010
(AS PER THE RECORD OF DEPOSITORS) (cont’d)
			
No. Name of Shareholders

76

No. of
shares held

% of issued
share capital

22

HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd For Apex Dynamic Fund (5303-401)

299,500

0.15

23

Tay Ming Siong

290,000

0.14

24

Yeik Nai Soon

280,000

0.14

25

CIMB Group Nominees (Asing) Sdn. Bhd.
BHLB Trustee Berhad For Global Strategic Growth Fund (KSC 1)

240,000

0.12

26

Lok Wei Seong

237,200

0.12

27

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pledged Securities Account For Num Siew Yoke (472113)

220,000

0.11

28

Chong Ying Choy

220,000

0.11

29

Chua Eng Kiat

219,600

0.11

30

Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn. Bhd.
Pledged Securities Account For Ngo Seh Tee (472991)

200,000

0.10
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY WILL BE HELD AT LEVEL 9,
CLASSIC 1 BANQUET MEETING HALL, HOTEL CLASSIC, 69 JALAN ALI, 84000 MUAR, JOHOR DARUL TAKZIM ON TUESDAY,
22 FEBRUARY 2011 AT 11.00 A.M. FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:-

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 August 2010
together with the Reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 31 August 2010.

(Resolution 1)

3.

To declare a final dividend of 10.5% in respect of the financial year ended 31 August 2010.

(Resolution 2)

4.

To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with Article 81 of the Company’s
Articles of Association:-

5.

(Please refer
to Note A)

a)

Chua Fen Fatt

(Resolution 3)

b)

Tee Hwee Ing

(Resolution 4)

To appoint Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to determine their remuneration.
Notice of Nomination pursuant to Section 172(11) of the Companies Act, 1965 (a copy of which
is annexed as “Appendix 1” in the Annual Report 2010) has been received by the Company for
the appointment of Messrs Crowe Horwath, who have given their consent to act, as Auditors of
the Company in place of the current Auditors, Messrs SC Lim, Ng & Co. whom had indicated their
intention not seeking for re-appointment.

(Resolution 5)

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without any modification:6.

Ordinary Resolution
Renewal of Authority to Allot and Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies
Act, 1965
“THAT subject always to the Companies Act, 1965 (“Act”), the Articles of Association of the
Company and the approvals of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and all other applicable
laws, regulations and guidelines, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby given full
authority, pursuant to Section 132D of the Act, to issue and allot shares in the capital of the
Company at any time upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors
may, in their discretion, deem fit, provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued
pursuant to this resolution does not exceed ten percent (10%) of the issued and paid-up share
capital of the Company for the time being and that such authority shall continue in force until
the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company.

(Resolution 6)
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
(cont’d)
7.

Ordinary Resolution
Proposed Ratification of the past Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading
in Nature and the Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
“THAT pursuant to paragraph 10.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Main Market LR”), approval be and is hereby given for the ratification of
the specified Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a revenue or trading nature with the
Related Parties as stated in Section 2.2.3 of the Circular to Shareholders dated 31 January 2011,
which were necessary for its day-to-day operations, entered into or to be entered into by the
Homeritz Group on the basis that these transactions were entered into on terms which were
not more favorable to the Related Parties involved than generally available to the public and
were not detrimental to the minority shareholders of the Company (hereinafter referred to as
the “Proposed Ratification”);
“THAT pursuant to paragraph 10.09 of the Main Market LR, approval be and is hereby given
for the renewal of the shareholders’ mandate for the Homeritz Group to enter into and to
give effect to specified Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a revenue or trading nature
and with the Related Parties as stated in Section 2.2.3 of the Circular to Shareholders dated
31 January 2011, which are necessary for its day-to-day operations, to be entered into by the
Homeritz Group on the basis that these transactions are entered into on terms which are not
more favorable to the Related Parties involved than generally available to the public and are
not detrimental to the minority shareholders of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”);
THAT the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate is subject to annual renewal. In this respect, any
authority conferred by the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate shall only continue to be in force
until:(a)

the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company following the general
meeting at which the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate was passed, at which time it will
lapse, unless by a resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed; or

(b)

the expiration of the period within which the annual general meeting after the date it
is required to be held pursuant to Section 143(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”)
(but shall not extend to such extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 143(2) of
the Act); or

(c)

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting,

whichever is the earlier;
AND THAT the Directors of the Company and/or any of them be and are hereby authorized
to complete and do all such acts and things (including executing such documents as may
be required) to give effect to the Proposed Ratification and the Proposed Shareholders’
Mandate.”
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
(cont’d)
8.

Special Resolution
Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company
“THAT the proposed amendments to the existing Article 146 of the Articles of Association
of the Company as set out in Appendix II attached in the Circular to Shareholders dated
31 January 2011 be and is hereby approved and adopted.”

(Resolution 8)

NOTICE OF ENTITLEMENT DATE AND DIVIDEND PAYMENT
NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN THAT the proposed final dividend of 10.5% in respect of the financial
year ended 31 August 2010, if approved, will be paid on 18 March 2011 to depositors registered in
the Record of Depositors of the Company at the close business on 24 February 2011.
A depositor shall qualify for entitlement only in respect of:a)

Shares transferred into the Depositor’s Securities Account before 4.00p.m. on 24 February
2011 in respect of ordinary transfers; or

b)

Shares bought on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on a cum entitlement basis according
to the Rules of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Pang Kah Man (MIA 18831)
Secretary
Muar, Johor Darul Takzim
31 January 2011
Notes:(A)

This Agenda item is meant for discussion only as provision of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does not require a
formal approval of the shareholders and hence, is not put forward for voting.

1.

A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and the provision of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall
not apply to the Company.

2.

To be valid, the form of proxy, duly completed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at No. 7, (1st Floor),
Jalan Pesta 1/1, Taman Dr Ismail 1, Jalan Bakri, 84000 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
time of the Annual General Meeting.

3.

In the event the member(s) duly executes the form of proxy but does not name any proxy, such member(s) shall be deemed to
have appointed the Chairman of the Meeting as his/their proxy, provided always that the rest of the form of proxy, other than
the particulars of the proxy, have been duly completed by the member(s).

4.

A member shall be entitled to appoint more than one (1) proxy to attend and vote at the same Annual General Meeting provided
that the provisions of Section 149(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965 are complied with.

5.

Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his
holdings to be represented by each proxy.

6.

If the appointer is a corporation, the form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised.
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Notice Of Annual General Meeting
(cont’d)

Explanation Note on Special Business:7.

8.

Ordinary Resolution no. 6
Renewal of Authority to Allot and Issue Shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
(a)

The proposed Ordinary Resolution no. 6, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting to allot and issue shares in the Company up to an amount not exceeding ten
percent (10%) of the issued capital of the Company for the time being for such purposes as they may deem fit and in the
interest of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting will expire at the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

(b)

The mandate now sought is a renewal from the previous mandate obtained at the last Annual General Meeting held on
05 January 2010 which will expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

(c)

The authority will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, including but not limited to
further placing of shares, for purpose of funding future investment project(s), working capital and/or acquisitions.

Ordinary Resolution no. 7
Proposed Shareholders’ Ratification and Proposed Renewal Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
The proposed Ordinary Resolution no. 7, if passed, will enable the Company and its subsidiaries to enter into recurrent related
party transactions of a revenue or trading nature from 19 February 2010, being the listing date until the date of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and which are necessary for its day-to-day operations and with those related parties as set out in
Section 2.2.3 of the Circular to Shareholders of the Company dated 31 January 2011 provided that such transactions are entered
into on terms which are not more favourable to the related parties involved than generally available to the public and are not
detrimental to the minority shareholders of the Company.
Further details of the proposed shareholders’ ratification and proposed shareholders’ mandate for the recurrent related party
transactions of a revenue or trading nature are set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 31 January 2011.

9.

Special Resolution no. 8
Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company
The proposed Special Resolution is to amend the existing Article 146 of the Articles of Association of the Company in relation to
the implementation of the electronic dividend payment (“eDividend”)
The main objective of implementing the eDividend is, amongst others, to promote greater efficiency of the dividend payment
system to reflect the new initiatives with regard to the capital market, specifically to provide shareholders with an e-dividend
payment system which is an alternative method of receiving cash dividends that is convenient to the shareholders. The eDividend
will allow the Company to credit dividend entitlements in respect of the shares of the Company directly into the shareholders’
bank accounts and improve the efficiency of the payment.
Further details of the proposed amendments are set out in the Circular to Shareholders dated 31 January 2011.
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Statement Accompanying
Notice Of Annual General Meeting
Directors standing for re-election
a)

Chua Fen Fatt

b)

Tee Hwee Ing

The profiles of the above Directors are set out in the section entitled “Board of Directors’ Profile” on page 9 and their
attendance of Board Meeting are set out on page 12 of this Annual Report. Shareholdings of Directors who are standing
for re-election are set out in the Analysis of shareholdings on page 74 of this Annual Report.
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Appendix 1 Notice Of Nomination
Notice of Nomination Pursuant to Section 172(11) of the Companies Act, 1965

CHUA FEN FATT
C/O: Lot 8726 PTD 6023 Batu 8
Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri
84200 Muar Johor
Date: 24 January 2011
The Board Of Directors
HOMERITZ CORPORATION BERHAD
Lot 8726 PTD 6023 Batu 8
Kawasan Perindustrian Bukit Bakri
84200 Muar Johor
Dear Sirs,
RE: NOTICE OF NOMINATION OF MESSRS CROWE HORWATH
I, Chua Fen Fatt, a member of the Company, hereby give notice, pursuant to Section 172(11) of the Companies Act, 1965
of my nomination of Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company in place of the retiring Auditors, Messrs SC Lim,
Ng & Co.

Yours truly,

..................……...……...............
CHUA FEN FATT
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Proxy Form

HOMERITZ CORPORATION BERHAD
(Company No. 805792-X)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

No of shares held

I/We, ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
of .………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
being a member/members of HOMERITZ CORPORATION BERHAD, hereby appoint ………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
of .………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
or failing him/her, .……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
of .………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Third Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at
Level 9, Classic 1 Banquet Meeting Hall, Hotel Classic, 69 Jalan Ali, 84000 Muar, Johor Darul Takzim on Tuesday,
22 February 2011 at 11.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of my/our shareholding in the manner indicated
below:No.

Ordinary Resolution

For

1

Approval of Directors’ Fees for the financial year ended 31 August 2010

2

Declaration of Final Dividend of 10.5%

3

Re-election of Chua Fen Fatt as Director

4

Re-election of Tee Hwee Ing as Director

5

Appointment of Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors

6

Renewal of authority for Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Section
132D of the Companies Act, 1965

7

Proposed Ratification of past Shareholders’ Mandate and Proposed Renewal of
Shareholders’ Mandate

8

Proposed Amendments to Articles of Association

Against

[Please indicate with a “x” in the spaces provided whether you wish your votes to be cast for or against the resolutions. In the
absence of specific instructions, your proxy will vote or abstain as he/she thinks fit]
Dated this ………………………… day of ………………………..………. 2011

………………………………………….………….
Signature of Shareholder or Common Seal
Notes :
1.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need
not be a member of the Company and the provisions of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

2.

Where a member appoints two (2) or more proxies, the appointments shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy.

3.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised in writing. If the appointor
is a corporation, the instrument must be executed under its Common Seal or under the hand of an attorney so authorised.

4.

The Proxy Form must be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 7 (1st Floor), Jalan Pesta 1/1, Taman Tun
Dr. Ismail 1, Jalan Bakri, 84000 Muar, Johor not less than 48 hours before the time set for holding of the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Please fold here

Affix Stamp

The Company Secretary

Homeritz Corporation Berhad (805792-X)
No. 7 (1st Floor), Jalan Pesta 1/1
Taman Tun Dr Ismail 1, Jalan Bakri
84000 Muar
Johor Darul Takzim
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